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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on FornKlt@at are not purely historical are forward-lookjrstatements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statertseinclude statements regarding our “expectatibtanticipation,” “intentions,”
“beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding the future, wather or not those words are used. Forward-loolstagjements also include statements
regarding revenue, margins, expenses, and earranglysis for fiscal 2006 and thereafter; technot@jiinnovations; products or product
development, including their performance, markedifoan, and potential; our product development &aes; potential acquisitions or
strategic alliances; the success of particular protlor marketing programs; the amounts of reveremegated as a result of sales to
significant customers; and liquidity and anticipateash needs and availability. All forward-lookisigitements included in this report are
based on information available to us as of thadjldate of this report, and we assume no obligationpdate any such forward-looking
statements. Our actual results could differ matiriikom the forwardiooking statements. Among the factors that couldseactual results
differ materially are the factors discussed in Itér" Busines— Risk Factor¢”
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed user interface solutionsehable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and otherteac devices. We currently target the
PC market, iAppliance market, and other selectteda@ device markets with our customized interfachkitions.

We believe we are the market leader in proxjdnterface solutions for notebook computers aard4disk drive, or HDD, portable digital
music players. Our original equipment manufactuweQEM, customers include the world’s ten larggStOEMs and many of the world’s
largest HDD portable digital music player OEMs. Wémerally supply our OEM customers through themi@ct manufacturers, which take
delivery of our products and pay us directly fagrth These contract manufacturers include Asusalpbmpal, Hon Hai, Inventec, Shanghai
Yi Hsin, and Uniwill.

Our website is located at www.synaptics.corhrough our website, we make available free afrgh all of our Securities and Exchange
Commission filings, including our annual reportskmrm 10-K, our proxy statements, our quarterlyorepon Form 10-Q, and our current
reports on Form 8-K as well as Form 3, Form 4, Boian 5 Reports for our directors, officers, andhpipal stockholders, together with
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyausto Section 13(a), 15(d), or 16 under the SeesiExchange Act. These reports are
available immediately after their electronic filimgth the Securities and Exchange Commission. Tékesite also includes corporate
governance information, including our Code of Cartdour Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior FamrOfficers, and our Board
Committee Charters.

PC Market

We provide custom interface solutions for gation, cursor control, and multimedia controlsrmany of the world’s premier PC OEMs.
In addition to notebooks, other PC applicationsdior technology include peripherals, such as kesdmanice, and monitors, as well as
desktop and PC remote applications. Our solutiontiie PC market include the TouchPad™, a touchibes pad that senses the position of
a person’s finger on its surface; the TouchStyk™elaicontained, easily integrated pointing stiakduwle; and dual pointing solutions, which
combine both a TouchPad and a pointing stick irgmgle notebook computer, enabling users to uséntierface of their choice. Additional
products offered for the PC markets include LuxPadihtTouch™, QuickStroke®, and FingerPrint ToualdP

The latest industry projections for noteboblpments for the period 2005-2009 show a compoumdial growth rate of 16.3% compared
with 4.5% for desktop computers, reflecting thetoared migration of desktops to notebooks fueledibgrs’ need for mobile computing and
remote access. Based on the strength of our teatmaind engineering know-how, we believe we are pasitioned to take advantage of the
growth opportunity in the notebook market and tovte innovative, value-added interface solutiarsefach of the key end-user preferences.
We estimate that in fiscal 2005 approximately 8(albnotebook computers sold used solely a towahipterface; 4% used solely a pointing
stick interface; and 16% used a dual pointing fate, which consists of both a touch pad and atipgjrstick. Our notebook product lines of
touch pads and pointing sticks allow us to addi€§86 of the total notebook market.

iAppliance and Other Electronic Device Markets

We believe our extensive intellectual propgrytfolio, our experience in providing interfacdigions to major notebook OEMs, and our
proven track record of growth in our expanding amoéebook computer interface business positior Uxeta key technological enabler for
multiple applications in many markets. Based osé¢hgtrengths, we are addressing the opportunigéeded by the growth of a new class of
mobile computing and communications devices, wkiehcall information appliances, or “iAppliancess aell as other electronic devices.
iAppliances include portable digital music playargbile phones, personal digital assistants, or @& well as a variety of mobile,
handheld, wireless, and entertainment devices.r@iketronic devices include remote
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controls for multimedia control and home entertaémtn as well as touch screens for use in ATMs,Kspseb phones, and interactive gaming
machines. We believe our existing technologies range of product solutions, and our emphasis ea efiuse, small size, low power
consumption, advanced functionality, durabilitydagliability will enable us to serve multiple aspeof the markets for iAppliance and other
electronic devices.

Our array of custom solutions for the iApptammarket includes the ScrollStrip™ and TouchRing/hich are scrolling solutions allowil
users to efficiently navigate through menus anderun LightTouch™ capacitive buttons, which provitieminated button functionality; and
MobileTouch™, NavPoint™, ClearPad™, and our Touch8e.

Industry projections for the portable digtalisic player market for the period 2004-2008 sugge®mpound annual growth rate of 26%
for the overall market and a compound annual groatih exceeding 30% for the HDD segment of the starkflecting the trend toward
portable digital music player products containimgager data storage capacities. These productgeemgimple, reliable, and intuitive user
interface solution to navigate efficiently througienus and scroll through extensive play lists amtjs contained in the host device. We
believe we are well positioned to take advantagisfrapidly growing market based on our techngl@ngineering know-how, and the
broad acceptance of our custom-designed useraetedolutions currently found in several HDD pdeatigital music players.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to enhance ousitian as a leading supplier of interface solutifarshe notebook computer market and
portable digital music players and to become aitgpslupplier of interface solutions for iAppliancasd other electronic devices. Key aspects
of our strategy to achieve this objective includese set forth below.

Extend Our Technological Leaderst

We plan to utilize our extensive intellectpabperty portfolio and technological expertise xtead the functionality of our product
solutions and offer innovative product solutiongtistomers across multiple market segments. Wadrtte continue utilizing our
technological expertise to reduce the overall simgght, cost, and power consumption of our intfaolutions while increasing their
applications, capabilities, and performance. Wa pdacontinue enhancing the ease of use and furadiip of our solutions. We also plan to
expand our research and development efforts thretrgkegic acquisitions and alliances, increasgemses, and the hiring of additional
engineering personnel. We believe that these sffoitt enable us to meet customer expectationstamahieve our goal of supplying on a
timely and cost-effective basis the most advaneady-to-use, functional interface solutions totauget markets.

Enhance Our Leadership Position in the Notebook @dar and Portable Digital Music Player Marke

We intend to continue introducing market-leaginterface solutions in terms of performancecfiomality, size, and ease of use. We plan
to continue enhancing our customer’s industrialgiealternatives and device functionality throughadvative product development based on
our existing capabilities and technological advance

Capitalize on Growth of New Markets

We intend to capitalize on the growth of nearkets, including the iAppliance markets, broudtiwt by the convergence of computing,
communications, and entertainment devices. We tolaffer innovative, intuitive interface solutiotisat address the evolving portability,
connectivity, and functionality requirements ofshenew markets. We plan to offer these solutiorexigting and potential OEM customers
a means to increase the functionality, reduceites Bwer the cost, and enhance the industriabddsatures and user experience of our
customers’ products. We plan to utilize our exigtiachnologies as well as aggressively pursue aelnblogies as new markets evolve and
demand new solutions.
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Emphasize and Expand Customer Relations

We plan to emphasize and expand our strondaamgdlasting customer relationships and to provitemost advanced interface solutions
for our customers’ products. We believe that oteriiace solutions enable our customers to deliyegsitive user experience and to
differentiate their products from those of theimgzetitors. We continually attempt to enhance thepetitive position of our customers by
providing them with innovative, distinctive, andjhiquality interface solutions on a timely and esi$¢ctive basis. To do so, we work
continually to improve our productivity, to reducests, and to speed the delivery of our interfatetions. We endeavor to streamline the
entire design and delivery process through our mmggdesign, engineering, and production improvenedfiorts. We also devote considerable
effort to support our customers after the purcledsmur interface solutions.

Pursue Strategic Relationships and Acquisiti

We intend to develop and expand strategitioziships to enhance our ability to offer value-edldustomer solutions, penetrate new
markets, and strengthen the technological leadedfiour product solutions. We also intend to aggabompanies in order to expand our
technological expertise and to establish or stiegmgbur presence in selected target markets.

Continue Virtual Manufacturing

We plan to expand and diversify our productiapacity through third-party relationships, theretvengthening our virtual manufacturing
platform. This strategy results in a scalable bessirmodel; enables us to concentrate on our canpatencies of research and development,
technological advances, and product design; anacesdour capital expenditures. Our virtual manufidicy strategy allows us to maintain a
variable cost model, in which we do not incur mafsbur manufacturing costs until our product sans have been shipped and billed to our
customers.

Product Solutions

We develop, enhance, and acquire interfadentdogies that enrich the interaction between peapld their mobile computing,
communications, and entertainment devices. Ouniatie and intuitive interfaces can be engineecegiccommodate many diverse
platforms, and our expertise in human factors asability can be utilized to improve the featured &mctionality of our solutions. Our
extensive array of technologies includes ASICspfirare, software, and pattern recognition and t@stsing technologies

Our interface solutions are custom enginedm#d| solutions for our customers and include sedssign, module layout, ASICs, firmwa
and software features for which we provide manuifi@ogy and design support and device testing. Tllasva us to be a one-stop supplier for
complete interface design from the early desiggestto manufacturing, to testing and support. Tghoour technologies and expertise, we
seek to provide our customers with customized &nistthat address their individual design issuesranult in high-performance, feature-
rich, and reliable interface solutions. We belieue interface solutions offer the following chaexdstics:

» Ease of Us. Our interface solutions offer the ease of useiafdtive interaction that users dema

+ Small SizeThe small, thin size of our interface solutionsl#dasa our customers to reduce the overall size axightof their products
in order to satisfy consumer demand for portabi

» Low Power Consumptic. The low power consumption of our interface salug enables our customers to offer products witlydo
battery life or smaller battery siz

» Advanced Functionalit. Our interface solutions offer advanced featusash as virtual scrolling, customizable tap zoedge
motion, and tapping and dragging icons, to enhaisee experience

» Reliability . The reliability of our interface solutions saigsf consumer demand for dependability, which issfporrcomponent of
consumer satisfactiol
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« Durability . Our interface solutions withstand repeated usegre physical treatment, and temperature flucinativhile providing a
superior level of performanc

We believe these characteristics will enalsléounaintain our leadership position in the notéboomputer market and to enhance our
position as a technological enabler of iApplianaed other electronic devices.

Our interface solutions are available in aaapof thickness, shapes, and sizes. Our custodupte also offer unique integration options,
including allowing our capacitive sensors to becpthunderneath the plastic of the device whichnallfor streamlined and stylized designs,
incorporating LEDs to indicate status or enhandestrial design, and incorporating tactile indicafsuch as ridges, Braille bumps, textures,
or others designed to provide the user with aduktideedback.

Our emphasis on technological leadership aistomized-design capabilities positions us to mtevinique interface solutions that address
specific customer requirements. Our long-term wagkielationships with large, global OEMs providenith experience in satisfying their
demanding design specifications and other requingsn®©ur custom product solutions provide OEMs witimerous benefits, including the
following:

e customized, modular integratic

» reduced product development co:

» shorter product time to mark

« compact and efficient platform

« improved product functionality and utility; ai
« product differentiation

We work with our customers to customize ouutsons in order to meet their industrial desigguigements and to differentiate their
products from those of competitors. This collabieeeffort reduces the duplication and overlapneieistment and resources, enabling our
OEM customers to devote more time and resourctdgetmarket development of their products.

We utilize capacitive technology rather thasistive or mechanical technology in our produtitians. Unlike resistive and mechanical
technology, our capacitive technology requires mwimg parts or activation force, thereby offerinduable, more reliable solution. The
solid-state nature of our capacitive technologgvad it to be integrated with both curved and flafaces. Capacitive technologies also allow
for much thinner sensors than resistive or meclahitgchnology, allowing for slimmer, more compactl ainique industrial designs.

Products

We offer customers user interface solutiomas pinovide competitive advantages. Our family afdarct solutions allows our customers to
solve their interface needs and differentiate theaducts from those of their competitors.

TouchPad

Our TouchPad, which takes the place and excewdfunctionality of a mouse, is a small, touehsitive pad that senses the position of a
person’s finger on its surface through the measargmof capacitance. Our TouchPad provides an am;wamfortable, and reliable method
for screen navigation and cursor movement, andiges\a platform for interactive input. Our TouchRatlitions allow our customers to
provide stylish, simple, user-friendly, and intuéiinterface solutions for both the consumer angamate markets. Our TouchPad solutions
offer various advanced features, including theofelhg:
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« Virtual scrolling. This feature enables the user to scroll throughdamtyument by swiping a finger along the side otdrotof the
TouchPad

« Customizable tap zoneBhese zones permit designated portions of the TRadho be used to simulate mouse clicks, launch
applications, and perform other selected functi

« PalmChecl™ . PalmCheck eliminates false activation when a p¢'s palm accidentally rests on the TouchF
« EdgeMotior™ . This feature permits cursor movement to continuem use's finger reaches the edge of the Touch!

« Tapping and dragging of iconhis feature allows the user to simply tap on amim order to drag it, rather than being forced to
hold a button down in order to drag an ic

« Multi-finger gestures<This feature allows the user to designate speadimns when more than one finger is used on thefBad

Our TouchPad solutions are available in agraf sizes, electrical interfaces, and thickngs8eir TouchPad solutions are designed to
meet the electrical and mechanical specificatidrauo customers. Customized firmware and drivetveafe ensure the availability of
specialized features. As a result of their soladestharacteristics, our TouchPad solutions hawaaang parts that wear out, resulting in a
robust and reliable input solution that also alldarsunique industrial designs.

TouchStyk

We offer both capacitive and resistive poigtitick solutions. We also offer TouchStyk, ourgpietary pointing stick interface solution.
TouchStyk is a self-contained, easily integratediud® that uses similar capacitive technology asTamuchPad. TouchStyk is enabled with
press-to-select and tap-to-click capabilities asud lze easily integrated into multiple computing aachmunications devices. We have
reduced the number of components needed to cah&gointing device, allowing the electronics floe fTouchStyk to be mounted directly on
the printed circuit board, or PCB, of the unitalhdition, this design greatly reduces susceptjtititelectromagnetic interference, thereby
providing greater pointing accuracy and preventivgpointer from drifting when not in use.

We are currently shipping our TouchStyk inalmtoks that utilize dual pointing interface solnoOur modular approach allows OEMs to
include our TouchPad, our TouchStyk, or a combamatif both interfaces in their notebook computers.
Dual Pointing Solution:

Our dual pointing solutions offer a TouchP&thwa pointing stick in a single notebook compu@rabling users to select their interface of
choice. Our dual pointing solution also provides ¢éimd user the ability to use both interfaces dht@ngeably. Our dual pointing solution
provides the following advantages:

» cos-effective and simplified OEM integratio

« simplified OEM product line because one device ams both solutions

» single-source supplier, which eliminates compatibilityuiss; anc

» end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenc

We have developed two solutions for use indiin@ pointing market. Our first solution integratl the electronics for controlling a third-
party resistive strain gauge pointing stick onto douchPad PCB. This solution simplifies OEM int&gwn by eliminating the need to proc
the pointing stick electronics from another pamy @hysically integrate them into the notebook. €erond dual pointing solution uses our
TouchStyk rather than a
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third-party pointing stick, and offers the samegliffred OEM integration. The second solution isanpletely modular design, allowing
OEMs to offer TouchPad-only, TouchStyk-only, or dpainting solutions on a build-to-order basis.

LuxPad

LuxPad is an innovative illuminated TouchPHlde LuxPad is designed to be appealing to consuamet$o serve as a product
differentiator to our customers. The LuxPad cahegitight up the entire touchpad. light up a logahie center of the TouchPad, or light up
designated “virtual buttons” on the TouchPad, dejpenon the preference of the notebook designer.

Fingerprint TouchPar

Our Fingerprint TouchPad module combines aurchPad with an advanced biometric sensor and aodtto provide a fully integrated
biometric security and interface solution. The &myint recognition features of our integrated medeplace the need for a user name and
password combination with the usefingerprint. The integrated Fingerprint TouchPaatule has the dual advantage of providing secbyi
restricting login access to anyone other thanitfteful user and providing user convenience by mgki easier and faster to log in since a
user name and password are not needed.

QuickStroke

QuickStroke provides a fast, easy, and acewaly to input Chinese characters. Using our reitiogrtechnology that combines our
patented software with our TouchPad, QuickStrokereaognize handwritten, partially finished Chinebaracters, thereby saving
considerable time and effort. Our QuickStroke ofseravith our touch pad products that can be integrimto notebook computers, keyboa
and a host of stand-alone interface devices thaeiiker a pen or a finger.

Our patented Incremental Recognition Technpkd@pws users to simply enter the first few stroké a Chinese character and QuickStr
accurately interprets the intended character. Simedypical Chinese character consists of an geeod 13 strokes, QuickStroke technology
saves considerable time and effort. The underlgattern recognition engine can be ported to diffeedphabets or characters, allowing us to
offer different language support.

TouchRing

Our TouchRing is an integrated solid-stateriiatce circular scrolling wheel utilizing our cajiae touch sensing technology that enables
the user to navigate through menus and scroll gitrdists. Our TouchRing is being utilized in MP&yérs in which the scroll wheel enables
the user to navigate efficiently through menus seroll through extensive play lists and songs.

ScrollStrip

ScrollStrip is a one-dimensional TouchPad pravides a simple and intuitive way for usersdmH through menus, navigate through
content, and adjust controls. A ScrollStrip carubed in a wide variety of applications that reqaittin, robust, accurate, and easy-to-use
input and navigation device, including PC peripkersuch as keyboards and mice, and iApplianceslIStrip is available in custom sizes,
thicknesses, colors, and electronic interfacesdetrthe needs of our OEM customers. CurrentlyStrellStrip is incorporated into a number
of devices, including MP3 players, PC keyboards, @@mputer mice.

LightTouch

LightTouch is a simple, easy to use, styligleiiface solution that replaces mechanical butigtisan illuminated sensor programmed to
perform functions, such as pause and play. Lighthids designed for integration under the plastiefaf a device, allowing for a sealed, thin
design that is both stylish and durable. Curremtlgumber of custom LightTouch solutions are abéglén the market, including multimedia
controls for notebook PCs, a multimedia keyboand, @ button controls for MP3 players.
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MobileTouch

MobileTouch is a new product solution speailic designed for the mobile phone environment twaihbines our expertise in ease of use
with our technology capabilities. The result istons designed modules that can combine our scroliakction, and navigation capabilities
into a simple, easy to use interface solution ii@aroves access to mobile phone content. Thedpptication of our MobileTouch solution is
in the Samsung SCH-S310 mobile phone.

ClearPad

ClearPad consists of a clear, thin capacgamsor that can be placed over any viewable syifadeding display devices, such as LCDs.
Similar to our traditional TouchPad, our ClearPad farious distinct advantages, including lightgheilow profile form factor; high
reliability, durability, and accuracy; and low pawensumption. Due to the solid state nature o&fRed, the sensor allows for a high leve
light transmissivity and can be mounted on curugtbses, allowing for unique industrial designs.

NavPoint

The NavPoint solution offers users improveqctionality and versatility in accessing and manggiontent in handheld devices through
unique navigation controls, including short- anddalistance scrolling features, tapping, and mdikgecursor navigation. The first
application with the NavPoint interface solutionrisa PDA.

TouchScreen

Our TouchScreen provides a user interfacdisalfior use with ATMs, ticket machines, medicadplays, industrial displays, pay-at-the-
pump gas machines, and interactive kiosks. Thedpplication of our TouchScreen is in an ATM.
Technologies

We have developed and own an extensive afregcbnologies encompassing ASICs, firmware, saftwand pattern recognition and to
sensing technologies. With 76 U.S. patents issndd3@ U.S. patents pending, we continue to devigldpnology in these areas. We believe
these technologies and the related intellectuglgmty create significant barriers for competitansd allow us to provide interface solutions
variety of high-growth market segments.

Our broad line of interface solutions currendgl based upon the following key technologies:
e capacitive position sensing technolo

» capacitive force sensing technolo

« transparent capacitive position sensing technol

» inductive position sensing technolog

e pattern recognition technolog

* mixed signal very large scale integrated circuitybSl, technology; ani

« proprietary microcontroller technolog

In addition to these technologies, we havectite competency of developing software that prewidnique features, such as virtual
scrolling, customizable tap zones, Palm Check, Bdgeon, tapping and dragging of icons, and muhiger gestures. In addition, our ability
to integrate all of our products to interface withjor operating systems, including Windows 98, VWdind 2000, Windows NT, Windows CE,
Windows XP, Windows ME, Mac OS, Pocket PC, Palm S8nbian, UNIX, and LINUX, provides us with a contifiee advantage.
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Capacitive Position Sensing Technolog@kis technology provides a method for sensing tiesgnce, position, and contact area of one or
more fingers or a conductive stylus on a flat awed surface, such as our TouchPad and TouchRimgté®hnology works with very light
touch and provides highly responsive cursor naiggascrolling, and selection. It uses no movingfaan be implemented under plastic,
and is extremely durable.

Capacitive Force Sensing Technolo@his technology senses the direction and magnibiideforce applied to an object. The object can
either move when force is applied, like a typicaistick used for gaming applications, or it caridmmetric, with no perceptible motion dur
use, like our TouchStyk. The primary competitiontftis technology is resistive strain gauge techgyl Resistive strain gauge technology
requires electronics that can sense very smallggsim resistance, presenting challenges to thgrdesthat circuitry, including sensitivity 1
electrical noise and interference. Our electromcuitry determines the magnitude and directiomwfapplied force, permits very accurate
sensing of tiny changes in capacitance, and migisniaterference from electrical noise.

Transparent Capacitive Position Sensing Technol®is technology allows us to build transparent senfor use with our capacitive
position sensing technology, such as in our ClearR&as all the advantages of our capacitivetrssensing technology and allows for
visual feedback when incorporated with a displayiaks such as an LCD. Our technology does not requalibration, does not produce
undesirable internal reflections, and has reduoekep requirements, allowing for longer battery.life

Inductive Position Sensing Technolo@his technology provides a method for sensing tiesgnce and position, in three dimensions, of a
pen on surfaces like the touch screen used in $raacdheld devices. The sensor board can be pladeddithe display screen, such as an
LCD, thus eliminating any undesirable reflectiongransmissivity losses and the need for backlightivhich enhances battery life.

Pattern Recognition Technologhhis technology is a set of software algorithmsdonverting real-world data, such as handwritingp &
digital form that can be recognized and manipulatgtin a computer, such as our QuickStroke prodinct gesture decoding for our
TouchPad products. Our technology provides reliabledwriting recognition and facilitates signatueeification.

Mixed Signal VLSI Technologyhis hybrid analog-digital integrated circuit tectmgy combines the power of digital computationhwit
the ability to interface with non-digital real-wdrsignals like the position of a finger or stylusasurface. Our patented design techniques
permit us to utilize this technology to optimizer @are ASIC engine for all our products, which wadiéve provides cost and performance
advantages over our competitors.

Proprietary Microcontroller Technologylhis technology consists of a proprietary 16-bitracontroller core embedded in the digital
portion of our mixed signal ASIC, which allows wsdptimize our ASIC for position sensing tasks. ®@ubedded microcontroller provides
great flexibility in customizing our product solaitis utilizing firmware, which eliminates the neediesign new circuitry for each new
application.

Competing Technology

Many interface solutions currently utilize istiwe sensing technology. Resistive sensing telcigyoconsists of a flexible membrane above
a flat, rigid, electrically conductive surface. Whinger or stylus pressure is applied to the meméy it deforms until it makes contact with
the rigid layer below, at which point attached #&legics can determine the position of the fingestgtus. Since the flexible membrane is a
moving part, it is susceptible to mechanical weat will eventually suffer degraded performance. Buthe way that resistive position
sensors work, it is not possible for them to detecte than a single finger or stylus at any giveret The positional accuracy of a resistive
sensor is limited by the uniformity of the resistisoating as well as by the mechanics of the flexibembrane. Finally, clear implementati
of resistive technology results in reduced transivity, or the amount of light that can pass thitotige display, requiring the use of a
backlight and thereby reducing the battery liféhef device.
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Research and Development

We conduct active and ongoing research andldpment programs that focus on advancing our tolies, developing new products,
improving design and manufacturing processes, ahdreing the quality and performance of our prodoaitions. Our goal is to provide ¢
customers with innovative solutions that addres§ tieeds and improve their competitive positidsr research and development
concentrates on our market-leading interface teldgies, improving our current product solutionsd &xpanding our technologies to serve
new markets. Our vision is to develop solutiong thiegrate touch, handwriting, vision, and voiepabilities that can be readily incorpora
into varied electronic devices.

Our research and development programs fociiseodevelopment of accurate, easy to use, featrereliable, and intuitive user
interfaces for electronic devices. We believe omoivative interface technologies can be appliadaoy diverse platforms. We believe the
interface will be a key factor in the differentii of these products. We believe that our interfachnologies enable us to provide customers
with product solutions that have significant adea@@s over alternative technologies in terms oftfanality, size, power consumption,
durability, and reliability. We also pursue strategcquisitions and enter into strategic relatigpstio enhance our research and development
capabilities, leverage our technology, and shootartime to market with new technological applioas.

Our research, design, and engineering teaesiéntly work directly with our customers to desogistom solutions for specific
applications. We focus on enabling our customes/emcome technological barriers and enhance tHferpgance of their products. We
believe our efforts provide significant benefitsolar customers by enabling them to concentraténein tore competencies of production and
marketing.

As of June 30, 2005, we employed 134 peoptruirtechnology, engineering, and product desigietions in the United States, the United
Kingdom, Taiwan, and Hong Kong. Our research aneld@ment expenses were approximately $19.8 millidiscal 2003, $21.4 million in
fiscal 2004, and $25.0 million in fiscal 2005.

Intellectual Property Rights

Our success and ability to compete dependuingn our ability to maintain the proprietary asgeof our technologies and products. We
rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, traderets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemenmid,odher contractual provisions to protect
our intellectual property, but these measures mayige only limited protection.

As of June 30, 2005, we held 76 U.S. patemtishead 32 U.S. pending patent applications. Thasenps and patent applications cover
various aspects of our key technologies, includiugh sensing, pen sensing, handwriting recognitastomizable tap zones, edge motion,
and virtual scrolling technologies. Our proprietaoftware is protected by copyright laws. The sewade for our proprietary software is also
protected under applicable trade secret laws.

Patent applications that we have filed or tilayin the future may not result in a patent beisgued. Our issued patents may be challet
invalidated, or circumvented, and claims of ouepéd may not be of sufficient scope or strengthissired in the proper geographic region
provide meaningful protection or any commercialatdage. We have not applied for, and do not hawecapyright registration on our
technologies or products. We have applied to registrtain of our trademarks in the United Statesather countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations oféradrks in key markets. Failure to obtain registregicould compromise our ability to protect
fully our trademarks and brands and could incréfaseisk of challenge from third parties to our o$eur trademarks and brands. In addit
our failure to enforce and protect our intellectpadperty rights or obtain from third parties thght to use necessary technology could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations.

Our extensive array of technologies includ&@s, firmware, software, and pattern recognitiod position sensing technologies. Any
of our products rely on a combination of these medbgies, making it difficult to use any single teology as the basis for replicating our
products. Furthermore, the length and customizaifdhe customer design cycle serve to protecimetlectual property rights. Our resear
design,
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and engineering teams frequently work directly vathr OEM customers to design custom solutions fecsic applications.

We do not consistently rely on written agreetaevith our customers, suppliers, manufacturerd,aher recipients of our technologies
and products, and therefore some trade secretgtimtanay be lost and our ability to enforce ouellectual property rights may be limited.
Furthermore, our customers, suppliers, manufactueerd other recipients of our technologies andyxts may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. le fhast, we did not consistently require our empégyend consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention agreememtserefore, our former employees
and consultants may try to claim some ownershgr@st in our technologies and products and maypustechnologies and products
competitively and without appropriate limitations.

Other companies, including our competitorsy mi@velop technologies that are similar or supedasur technologies, duplicate our
technologies, or design around our patents, andiraag or obtain patents or other proprietary righs would prevent, limit, or interfere
with our ability to make, use, or sell our produdiffective intellectual property protection may lorgavailable or limited in some foreign
countries, such as China and Taiwan, in which werate. Unauthorized parties may attempt to comtloerwise use aspects of our
technologies and products that we regard as ptapyieThere can be no assurance that our meamnsteicfing our proprietary rights in the
United States or abroad will be adequate or thatpsgitors will not independently develop similachieologies. If our intellectual property
protection is insufficient to protect our intellaat property rights, we could face increased coitipetin the market for our technologies and
products.

We may receive notices from third parties tiaim our products infringe their rights. From &no time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights sucltiga have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietagits of third parties. Any infringement claims, kvgr without merit, could result in significe
litigation costs and diversion of resources, inglgdhe payment of damages, which could have anmahtelverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Customers

Our customers include many of the world’s éstgPC OEMSs, based on unit shipments, as wellvasiety of consumer electronics
manufacturers. Our demonstrated track record dintelogical leadership, design innovation, prodwfgrmance, cost effectiveness, and on-
time delivery have resulted in our leadership pasiin providing interface solutions to the notekaoarket. We believe our strong
relationship with our OEM customers, many of whéck currently developing iAppliance and other piiduwill position us as a source of
supply for their product offerings.

In fiscal 2005, our OEM customers includedfibiitowing:

« Acer
 Apple
* Asustek

* Creative Lab:

* Dell

« ECS

* Fujitsu

* Gateway
» Gericom

* Hewlet-Packarc
e IBM

e NEC

e Samsun(

» Toshiba

We generally supply our OEM customers throthglir contract manufacturers. We sell our proddatsctly to these contract
manufacturers, which include Asusalpha, Compal, Hai Inventec, Shanghai Yi Hsin, and Uniwill. Sate Inventec accounted for
approximately 34% of our net revenue in fiscal 208 sales to Inventec and Compal accounted fmoamately 25% and 10%,
respectively, of our net revenue in fiscal 2004.dtleer customer accounted for more than 10% ohetirevenue during either fiscal 2005 or
fiscal 2004.

We consider both the OEMs and their contraamufiacturers to be our customers. The OEMs gegatatermine the design and pricing
requirements and make the overall decision reggrttie use of our interface solutions in their prdduThe contract manufacturers place
orders with us for the purchase of our products ta
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title to the products purchased upon shipment byand pay us directly for those purchases. Thes®mers have no return privileges, except
for warranty provisions.

Strategic Relationships

We have established strategic relationshigst@nce our ability to offer valwetded customer solutions. We intend to enter idtht@nal
strategic relationships with leading companiestntarget markets.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our product solutions for incorporatiato the products of OEMs. We generate salesutifralirect sales employees and sales
representatives and distributors. Our sales pesd@aneive substantial technical assistance angostifrom our internal engineering
resources because of the highly technical natucgioproduct solutions. Sales frequently resulbfroulti-level sales efforts that involve
senior management, design engineers, and our@aissnnel interacting with our customers’ decisitakers throughout the product
development and order process.

We currently employ 43 sales and marketindgasionals. We maintain seven customer suppoxesffilomestically and internationally,
which are located in the United States, the Unitedjdom, Taiwan, Japan, China, and Hong Kong. litazh, we utilize sales
representatives in Singapore, Malaysia, Korealthiged States, and Europe and sales distributatapan.

International sales, primarily in the Asiarddfuropean markets, constituted approximately 988%,, and 98% of our revenue in fiscal
2003, 2004, and 2005, respectively. A significamrtipn of these sales were made to companies ldéat€hina and Taiwan that provide
manufacturing services for major notebook compatet iAppliance and other electronic device OEMd$.oAthese sales were denominate
U.S. dollars.

Manufacturing

We employ a virtual manufacturing platformahgh third-party relationships. We currently utlitvo semiconductor manufacturers to
supply us with our requirements for our proprietA8iCs utilized in our interface solutions.

After production and testing, the ASICs aragigned to various subcontractors for assemblyinguhe assembly process, our ASIC is
combined with other components to complete our gpeodolution. The finished assembled product is S$t@pped by our subcontractors
directly to our customers for integration into thgioducts.

We believe our virtual manufacturing strat@ggvides a scalable business model; enables wnteotrate on our core competencies of
research and development, technological advanndpraduct design; and reduces our capital expemdit In addition, this strategy
significantly reduces our working capital requirertsefor inventory because we do not incur mostusfroanufacturing costs until we have
actually shipped our product solutions to our comts and billed those customers for those products.

Our third-party manufacturers are Asian-bamggnizations. We provide our manufacturing subeaors with six-month rolling
forecasts of our production requirements. We do Immtvever, have long-term agreements with any ohoanufacturing subcontractors that
guarantee production capacity, prices, lead timedglivery schedules. The strategy of relyingluwst parties exposes us to vulnerability
owing to our dependence on few sources of suppl/bdlieve, however, that other sources of supm@yaaailable. In addition, we may
establish relationships with other manufacturingcsuntractors in order to reduce our dependencepoe source of supply.

Periodically when a customer’s delivery scheds delayed or a customer’s order is cancelledpurchase inventory from our contract
manufacturers. In those circumstances, we consilether a writedown is required to reduce the carrying value efittventory purchased
its net realizable value.

11
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Backlog

As of June 30, 2005, we had a backlog of ardéapproximately $25.4 million an increase of 81&illion compared with our backlog of
orders as of June 30, 2004 of approximately $13lliom The increase in backlog is primarily reldt® the increase in demand for our
products. Our backlog consists of product ordersviiich purchase orders have been received anchvelnegenerally scheduled for shipir
within three months. Most orders are subject tahreduling or cancellation with limited penaltie®dause of the possibility of customer
changes in product shipments, our backlog as aefticplar date may not be indicative of net satesahy succeeding period.

Competition

Our principal competitor in the sale of notekdouch pads is Alps Electric, a Japanese conglam@.eOur principal competitors in the sale
of notebook pointing sticks are Alps Electric, NVahd CTS. In the iAppliance interface markets, ampetitors include Alps Electric,
Panasonic, Gunze, Interlink, and various other corigs involved in user interface solutions. In @iarcases, large OEMs may develop
alternative interface solutions for their own protiuor provide key components for use in desigimtegyface solutions.

In the notebook interface markets we plancatioue to compete primarily on the basis of ocht®logical expertise, design innovation,
customer service, and the long track record ofgperance of our interface solutions, including thegise of use, reliability, and cost-
effectiveness as well as their timely design, potidn, and delivery schedules. Our pointing stigkusons, including our proprietary
TouchStyk, enable us to address the approximatef4ie notebook computer market that uses solelgiating stick rather than a touch pad
as the user interface as well as the approximee dfthe notebook market that uses dual pointitgrfaces. Our ability to supply OEMs w
TouchPads, TouchStyks, and dual pointing altereatenhances our market position since we can pr&EMs with the following
advantages:

» single source supplier to eliminate compatibilggues

» cos-effective and simplified OEM integratio

« simplified product line to address both interfacefgrences

« end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferences; ¢

« modular approach allowing OEMs to utilize our ToReak, our TouchStyk, or a combination of both irstees

In the interface markets for iAppliances atiteo electronic devices, we compete primarily basethe advantages of our capacitive,
inductive, and neural pattern recognition techni@egWe believe our technologies offer benefiteeims of size, power consumption,
durability, light transmissivity, resolution, easkuse, and reliability when compared to other tethgies. While these markets continue to
evolve and we do not know what the competitivedeswill ultimately be, we believe we are positidrte compete aggressively for this
business based on our proven track record, ourusarglobal customer base, and our reputation fsigdénnovation. However, some of our
competitors in the iAppliance and electronic devitarkets have greater market recognition, largstoener bases, and substantially greater
financial, technical, marketing, distribution, aoither resources than we possess that afford thempetitive advantages. As a result, they |
be able to introduce new product solutions andaego customer requirements more quickly than are th addition, new competitors,
alliances among competitors, or alliances amongpatitors and OEMs may emerge and allow competttorapidly acquire significant
market share. Furthermore, our competitors mayldpwechnologies in the future that more effectvadidress the interface needs of the
notebook market and other markets.

Our sales, profitability, and success depandur ability to compete with other suppliers deirface solutions and components used in
interface solutions. Our competitive position cob&ladversely affected if one or more of our cur@EMs reduce their orders or if we are
unable to develop new customers for our interfateations.
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Employees

As of June 30, 2005, we employed a total & @érsons, including 42 in finance, administratiamg operations; 43 in sales and marke
and 134 in research and development. Of these &egd0 160 were located in North America, 37 in A&aaific, and 22 in Europe. We
consider our relationship with our employees t@bed, and none of our employees are representadibjon in collective bargaining with
us.

Competition for qualified personnel in our urstly is extremely intense, particularly for engirieg and other technical personnel. Our
success depends in part on our continued abiligitttact, hire, and retain qualified personnel.
Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain inforima regarding our executive officers:

Name Age Position

Francis F. Les 53 President, Chief Executive Officer, and Direc

Donald E. Kirby 57 Senior Vice President and General Manager PC Pt®

Russell J. Knittel 55 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, €fhdministrative Officer,
Secretary, and Treasul

Shawn P. Day, Ph.[ 39 Vice President of Research and Developn

David T. McKinnon 58 Vice President of System Silic

Thomas D. Spad 39 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

William T. Stacy, Ph.D 63 Vice President of Operatiol

Jon R. Ston 54 Vice President of Corporate Developm

Clark F. Foy 41 Vice President of Marketin

Francis F. Leenhas served as a director and the President and Exeeutive Officer of our company since Decemb@98. He was a
consultant from August 1998 to November 1998. Fiday 1995 until July 1998, Mr. Lee served as Genktahager of NSM, a Hong Kong-
based joint venture between National SemiconduCtsporation and S. Megga. Mr. Lee held a varietgxacutive positions for National
Semiconductor from 1988 until August 1995. Thesstms included Vice President of Communicatiod &omputing Group, Vice
President of Quality and Reliability, Director afaidard Logic Business Unit, and various other ajj@ns and engineering management
positions. Mr. Lee is a director of Foveon, Incprivately held company in which we have an ownigrgfterest. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of
Science degree, with honors, in electrical engingdrom the University of California at Davis.

Donald E. Kirbyhas been Senior Vice President and General Mafagétroducts of our company since November 200kdieed as
the General Manager PC Products and Vice PresiddéDperations of our company from August 1999 udtitober 2001. From
September 1997 to July 1999, Mr. Kirby served az\Rresident of Technology Infrastructure and Jaehnology Group of National
Semiconductor; from January 1997 to August 199&dmeed as Director of Strategic Technology Groulational Semiconductor; and frc
October 1995 to December 1996, he served as Diret®perations/ Co-GM, LAN Division of National ®é&conductor. Mr. Kirby holds a
patent for a Micro-controller ROM Emulator.

Russell J. Knittehas been Senior Vice President, Chief Financiak@ff Chief Administrative Officer, Secretary, andkasurer of our
company since November 2001. He served as theRfiesident of Administration and Finance, Chief Ririal Officer, and Secretary of our
company from April 2000 until October 2001. Mr. kel served as Vice President and Chief Financftit€ of Probe Technology
Corporation from May 1999 to
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March 2000. He was a consultant from January 198i®April 1999. Mr. Knittel was Vice President ahief Financial Officer at Starlight
Networks from November 1994 to December 1998. Mittiél holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accoupfiom California State Universit
at Fullerton and a Masters of Business Adminigirafrom San Jose State University.

Shawn P. Day, Ph.Dhas been the Vice President of Research and Dewelupof our company since June 1998. He servedeabitecto
of Software Development of our company from Novent#96 until May 1998 and as principal softwareipagr from August 1995 until
October 1996. Mr. Day holds a Bachelor of Scienegrele and a Doctorate, both in electrical engingefrom the University of British
Columbia in Vancouver, Canada.

David T. McKinnorhas been the Vice President of System Silicon otompany since September 2001. From May 2000 until
September 2001, Mr. McKinnon served as a consultasiart-up companies in the networking IC sedtoom April 1998 until April 2000,
Mr. McKinnon served as Vice President of NetworkBugsiness for Level One Communications. From DeeerB95 until April 1998,
Mr. McKinnon served as the Chief Operating Officghief Technical Officer of the Japan Business @rofiNational Semiconductor.
Mr. McKinnon holds a Bachelor of Science degreénwlbnors in Electrical and Electronic Engineerimgl @ Masters in Science, Digital
Techniques in Communications & Control from Hentgatt University in Edinburgh, Scotland.

Thomas D. Spadeas been the Vice President of Worldwide Salesiotompany since July 1999. From May 1998 untileJu@99, he
served as our Director of Sales. From May 1994 émtil 1998, Mr. Spade was the Director of Intetinaal Sales for Alliance
Semiconductor. Mr. Spade previously has held aatthfi sales and management positions at Alliancac®@ahuctor, Anthem Electronics,
Arrow Electronics, and Andersen Consulting. Mr. &p&olds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economicsraadagement from Albion College.

William T. Stacy, Ph.Chas been the Vice President of Operations of ompemy since October 2001. From August 1992 to 20004,
Mr. Stacy held a number of business managementigresin the Data Management and Analog Groupsatfddal Semiconductor. Most
recently, from April 1999 until June 2001, he wasé&/President of the Wireless Division. Prior timjog National Semiconductor, he held a
series of operational and business managemeniquasit Philips Semiconductors. He started hisararePhilips Research Laboratories in
Eindhoven, where he worked on magnetic and semiaziimd) device structures. Mr. Stacy holds a Baahel&cience degree in physics and
mathematics from Oregon State University and a &tasind Ph.D. degree in physics from the Universitjlinois.

Jon R. Stonéas been Vice President of Corporate DevelopmeotioEompany since January 2003. Immediately poigoining our
company, Mr. Stone was an independent strategis@adand investment banker to emerging growth comgsa From 1984 to 1994,
Mr. Stone was with the Sprout Group, then the ventapital affiliate of Donaldson Lufkin Jenretteof Credit Suisse First Boston), serving
as a general partner from 1987 to 1994. Previolty Stone served in various management positidttstive Telxon Corporation (which
was acquired by Symbol Technologies), General F@mdporation, and Warner Communications. Mr. Stoolels a Bachelor of Arts degree
in history and economics from Brandeis Universitylasters of Business Administration in Finance Aodounting from Columbia
University, and a Masters degree in Religious Stsifliom Stanford University.

Clark F. Foyhas been Vice President of Marketing of our compsinge February 2003. Mr. Foy was the Vice PregidéRroduct
Marketing for the Optical Storage Group of Oak Treabgy, Inc. from January 2002 to February 2003. By served as Vice President of
Marketing at Gadzoox Networks, a provider of netdry infrastructure products from June 2000 to day2002. Mr. Foy has also held
various management positions at Quantum CorporatidnCompag Computer Corporation. Mr. Foy holdsiehglor's Degree in Business
Administration from Miami University, and a MasteEManagement from Northwestern University’s KglipGraduate School of
Management.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the followgifactors, together with all the other informatinoluded in this report, in evaluating our
company and our business.

We currently depend on our TouchPad and TouchStyk pducts, and the notebook computer market, for a ginificant portion of our
revenue, and a downturn in these products or marketould have a more disproportionate impact on our @venue than if we were mor
diversified.

Historically, we have derived a substntiortion of our revenue from the sale of our Tidead and TouchStyk products for notebook
computers. While our lonterm objective is to derive revenue from multipieerface solutions for both the notebook computarket and th
iAppliance and other electronic device markets awticipate that sales of our TouchPads and Tou&kSty notebooks will continue to
represent a significant portion of our revenue. Pemarket as a whole has experienced a slowdowheirate of growth. A continued or
accelerated softening in the demand in the notepoation of the PC market or the level of our gapttion in that market would cause our
business, financial condition, and results of opena to suffer more than they would have if weeoffd a more diversified line of products.

We cannot assure you that sales of our interface Istions for portable digital music players will cortinue at existing levels or expand
or that our interface business for other iAppliance and electronic devices will be successful.

We cannot assure you that sales of darface solutions for portable digital music plasyesill continue at existing levels or expand or
that our interface business for other iApplianced electronic devices will be successful. Thesekatar primarily portable digital music
players, accounted for approximately 41% of ourraeénue in fiscal 2005, up from 16% and 7% indi2004 and 2003, respectively. Any
downturn in this business would adversely affectaperating results. In addition, our interfaceibass for other iAppliances and electronic
devices faces many uncertainties. Our inabilitpddress these uncertainties successfully and tinteea leading supplier of interfaces to
these other markets would result in a slower graaté than we currently anticipate. We do not kidvether our user interface solutions for
these other markets will gain market acceptanagilbever result in a substantial portion of oureaue on a consistent basis. The failure to
succeed in these other markets would result iretam on the substantial investments we have nadate and plan to make in the future to
penetrate these markets.

Various target markets for our interfacech as those for PDAs, smart phones, smart ledshdivices, Internet appliances, and
interactive games and toys, are uncertain, mayldpgwstower than anticipated, or could utilize coripg technologies. The market for certain
of these products depends in part upon the devedopand deployment of wireless and other technefggirhich may or may not address the
needs of users of these new products.

Our ability to generate significant reuerfrom the iAppliance and other electronic deviwkets will depend on various factors,
including the following:

. the development and growth of these mark

. the ability of our technologies and product solus to address the needs of these markets, theeetents of OEMs, and the
preferences of end users; ¢

. our ability to provide OEMs with interface solutis that provide advantages in terms of size, paaesumption, reliability,
durability, performance, and va-added features compared to alternative solut

Many manufacturers of these products leeleestablished relationships with competitivggliers. Penetrating these markets will
require us to offer better performance alternatteesxisting solutions at competitive costs. Weagaly do not have a significant backlog of
orders for our interface solutions to be incorpedah products in these markets. The revenue ammiria potential from these markets is
unproven. The failure of any of these target marketevelop as we expect, or our failure to petethese markets, will impede our
anticipated
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sales growth and could result in substantially cediuearnings from those we anticipate. We canreatigtrthe size or growth rate of these
markets or the market share we will achieve ineatraarkets in the future.

Our historical financial performance is based on skes of interface solutions to the notebook computenarket and may not be
indicative of our future performance in other markets.

Our historical financial performance pairity reflects the sale of interface solutionsfiotebook computers. While we expect sales of
our interface solutions for notebook computersaotiniue to generate a substantial percentage afeeenue, we expect to derive a substa
portion of our revenue from sales of our produdtitions for additional markets, including portabligital music players and other
iAppliances and electronic devices. Although 41%uwif fiscal 2005 net revenue was outside the natelbomputer market, we have a limi
operating history in these markets upon which ya evaluate our prospects, which may make it difffim predict our actual results in futt
periods. Actual results of our future operationg/midfer materially from our anticipated results.

Market acceptance of our customers’ existing or neyproducts that utilize our interface solution may dcline or may not develop and,
as a result, our sales may decline or may not expdn

We do not sell any products to end udestead, we design various interface solutionsdbba OEM customers incorporate into their
products. As a result, our success depends almtistlg upon the widespread market acceptance oO&M customersproducts. We do n¢
control or influence the manufacture, promotiomstrithution, or pricing of the products that incorgi@ our interface solutions. Instead, we
depend on our customers to manufacture and digdrifmoducts incorporating our interface solutiond g0 generate consumer demand
through marketing and promotional activities. E¥fesur technologies successfully meet our custofrenise and performance goals, our s
would decline or fail to develop if our customersrbt achieve commercial success in selling theidpcts that incorporate our interface
solutions.

Our customer base historically has caedigrimarily of major U.Sbased OEMs that sell notebook computers worldwideing fiscal
2002, we began to ship products to many of therdapaed notebook OEMs. Competitive advances byndaased OEMs, which do not
utilize our interface solutions broadly in theioguct offerings, at the expense of our other OEBtamers could result in lost sales
opportunities. The portable digital music playerkes also has become an important factor in ouratpe results. Any significant slowdown
in the use of our interface solutions by our cugmsnin this market, the reduced demand for ouronsts’ products, or a slowdown in the
market would adversely affect our sales.

If we fail to maintain and build relationships with our customers and do not continue to satisfy ourustomers, we may lose future sale
and our revenue may stagnate or decline.

Because our success depends on the widebmarket acceptance of our customers’ prodwetsnust continue to maintain our
relationships with the leading notebook computet paortable digital music player OEMs. In additisre must identify areas of significant
growth potential in other markets, establish relaghips with OEMs in those markets, and assisetl@EMs in developing products that use
our interface technologies. Our failure to idenpifytential growth opportunities, particularly ilvmenarkets, or establish and maintain
relationships with OEMs in those markets, wouldvpré our business from growing in those markets.

Our ability to meet the expectations of oustomers requires us to provide innovativerfate solutions for customers on a timely and
cost-effective basis and to maintain customer fsati®n with our interface solutions. We must madei design and production capacity with
customer demand, maintain satisfactory deliverydales, and meet performance goals. If we are artaldchieve these goals for any rea
our customers could reduce their purchases froemdsour sales would decline or fail to develop.

Our customer relationships also can bectdd by factors affecting our customers thatusrelated to our performance. These factors
can include a myriad of situations, including besisreversals of customers, determinations by mgstto change their product mix or
abandon business segments, or mergers, consatisatipacquisitions involving our customers, suslthe combination of Compaq and
Hewlett-Packard and the recent acquistion of IBRIG business unit by Lenovo.
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In fiscal 2005, one customer accounted for an aggyate of 34% of our sales, and the loss of salesthis company could harm our
business, financial condition, and results of opet@ns.

Sales to one company that provides conimanufacturing services to major OEMs accountech aggregate of 34% of our net
revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2itbfwo companies accounted for an aggregate%fd@&our net revenue during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004. These companies areéevarfiscal 2005 and Inventec and Compal in fi2€®4. Additionally, receivables fro
Inventec represented a total of 41% of our accowgusivable at June 30, 2005.

Inventec and Compal are contract manufacs that serve our OEM customers. Any materiyjeancellation, or reduction of orders
from any one or more of these contract manufaciuwwethe OEMs they serve could harm our businesa¢ial condition, and results of
operations. The adverse effect would be more sotiatéf our other customers in the notebook coreputdustry do not increase their orders
or if we are unsuccessful in generating ordersri@rface solutions in other markets, including piipnces and other electronic devices, from
existing or new customers. Many of these contratuffacturers sell to the same OEMSs, and therefarea@ncentration with certain OEMs
may be higher than with any individual contract ofaeturer. Concentration in our customer base makenfluctuations in revenue and
earnings more severe and make business planning diféicult.

Our revenue may decline if customers for which wera sole source providers seek alternative source§supply.

We serve as the sole source providesdare of our OEM customers. Those customers maysehooreduce their dependence on us by
seeking second sources of supply, which could educ revenue. To remain a sole source providemusg continue to demonstrate to our
customers that we have adequate alternate souncesrfiponents, that we maintain adequate alteemfiwr production, and that we can
deliver value added products on a timely basis.

We rely on others for our production, and any interuptions of these arrangements could disrupt our allity to fill our customers’
orders.

We utilize contract manufacturers foradlbur production requirements. The majority of manufacturing is conducted in China, H
Kong, Thailand, and Taiwan by manufacturing subcmtors that also perform services for numerousratbmpanies. We do not have a
guaranteed level of production capacity with anpwf contract manufacturers. Qualifying new manufaag subcontractors, and specifice
semiconductor foundries, is time-consuming and tigsult in unforeseen manufacturing and operatwoblems. The loss of our
relationships with our manufacturing subcontractrassemblers or their inability to conduct thmanufacturing and assembly services for
us as anticipated in terms of cost, quality, ametiness could adversely affect our ability to listomer orders in accordance with required
delivery, quality, and performance requirementshi$ were to occur, the resulting decline in raxewould harm our business.

We depend on third parties to maintain satisfactorymanufacturing yields and delivery schedules, ancheir inability to do so could
increase our costs, disrupt our supply chain, andasult in our inability to deliver our products, which would adversely affect our
results of operations.

We depend on our manufacturing subcotdra¢o maintain high levels of productivity andistactory delivery schedules at
manufacturing and assembly facilities located prilpyén China, Hong Kong, Thailand, and Taiwan. \Wevide our manufacturing
subcontractors with six-month rolling forecastaf production requirements. We do not, howevereHang-term agreements with any of
our manufacturing subcontractors that guarantegymtion capacity, prices, lead times, or delivariyexiules. Our manufacturing
subcontractors serve other customers, a numbehichvihave greater production requirements thanavedd a result, our manufacturing
subcontractors could determine to prioritize prdituccapacity for other customers or reduce or ielate deliveries to us on short notice. At
times, we have experienced lower than anticipatedufacturing yields and lengthening of deliveryestilies. Lower than expected
manufacturing yields could increase our costs siught our supplies. We may encounter lower manufang yields and longer delivery
schedules in commencing volume production of owr peoducts. Any of these problems could resultunioability to deliver our product
solutions in a timely manner and adversely affertaperating results.
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Shortages of components and materials may delay oeduce our sales and increase our costs, therebyrhagng our results of
operations.

The inability to obtain sufficient quaigs of components and other materials necessathidgproduction of our products could result
in reduced or delayed sales or lost orders. Angiydiel or loss of sales could adversely impact garating results. Many of the materials L
in the production of our products are availableydrom a limited number of foreign suppliers, pautarly suppliers located in Asia. In most
cases, neither we nor our manufacturing subcowirsitiave long-term supply contracts with these ensp As a result, we are subject to
economic instability in these Asian countries all @®to increased costs, supply interruptions, diffctulties in obtaining materials. Our
customers also may encounter difficulties or insegbcosts in obtaining the materials necessaryouge their products into which our
product solutions are incorporated.

From time to time, materials and compasesed in our product solutions or in other agpetbur customers’ products have been
subject to allocation because of shortages of thmegerials and components. During portions of fi2€®0 and 2001, limited manufacturing
capacity for ASICs resulted in significant costreases of our ASICs. Similar shortages in the &itiould cause delayed shipments, customer
dissatisfaction, and lower revenue.

We are subject to lengthy development periods andrpduct acceptance cycles, which can result in devigiment and engineering costs
without any future revenue.

We provide interface solutions that aweorporated by OEMs into the products they sellM3Enake the determination during their
product development programs whether to incorparaténterface solutions or pursue other altermstivi his process requires us to make
significant investments of time and resources exdhstom design of interface solutions well befare customers introduce their products
incorporating these interfaces and before we casubzthat we will generate any significant satesur customers or even recover our
investment. During a customer’s entire product tgwaent process, we face the risk that our intedasill fail to meet our customer’s
technical, performance, or cost requirements drahaproducts will be replaced by competitive proid or alternative technological
solutions. Even if we complete our design processmanner satisfactory to our customer, the custonay delay or terminate its product
development efforts. The occurrence of any of tlee@mts could cause sales to not materialize, tbeberred, or to be cancelled, which wo
adversely affect our operating results.

We do not have longterm purchase commitments from our customers, andhteir ability to cancel, reduce, or delay orders cold reduce
our revenue and increase our costs.

Our customers do not provide us with filamg-term volume purchase commitments, but irstesue purchase orders. As a result,
customers can cancel purchase orders or reducday drders at any time. The cancellation, delayeduction of customer purchase orders
could result in reduced revenue, excess inventorg,unabsorbed overhead. We have an establisheghpeein the notebook computer
market and have only recently established a presienthe iAppliance and other electronic deviceskets. These markets are subject to
severe competitive pressures, rapid technologltahge, and product obsolescence, which increasewentory and overhead risks, result
in increased costs.

We face intense competition that could result in auosing or failing to gain market share and suffemg reduced revenue.

We serve intensely competitive marketd #re characterized by price erosion, rapid teldgical change, and competition from major
domestic and international companies. This inteasepetition could result in pricing pressures, losaes, reduced margins, and lower
market share. Any movement away from high-quatiistom designed, feature rich interface solutiorlswer priced alternatives would
adversely affect our business. Some of our congpstiparticularly in the markets for iAppliancesiather electronic devices, have greater
market recognition, larger customer bases, andautislly greater financial, technical, marketingstribution, and other resources than we
possess and that afford them competitive advantdgea result, they may be able to devote greaturces to the promotion and sale of
products, to negotiate lower prices for raw mater@ed components, to deliver competitive prodatiswer prices, and to introduce new
product solutions and respond to customer requingmaore quickly than we can. Our competitive positould suffer if one or more of our
customers
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determine not to utilize our custom engineereal tedlutions approach and instead decide to desigmmanufacture their own interfaces, to
contract with our competitors, or to use altermatiechnologies.

Our ability to compete successfully deggean a number of factors, both within and outsidecontrol. These factors include the
following:

. our success in designing and introducing new iatersolutions, including those implementing neviatetogies;

. our ability to predict the evolving needs of oustmmers and to assist them in incorporating ourrtelogies into their new produc
. our ability to meet our custon’s requirements for low power consumption, easesef teliability, durability, and small form factc
. the quality of our customer servict

. the rate at which customers incorporate our interolutions into their own produc

. product or technology introductions by our comest anc

. foreign currency fluctuations, which may caugeraign competitor’s products to be priced sigrafidy lower than our product
solutions.

If we do not keep pace with technological innovatius, our products may not be competitive and our reenue and operating results ma
suffer.

We operate in rapidly changing marketchinological advances, the introduction of new potgl and new design techniques could
adversely affect our business unless we are aladapt to the changing conditions. Technologicabades could render our solutions
obsolete, and we may not be able to respond efédgtio the technological requirements of evolvingrkets. As a result, we will be required
to expend substantial funds for and commit sigaiftoresources to

. continue research and development activities ostiegi and potential interface solutiol
. hire additional engineering and other technicaspenel, an
. purchase advanced design tools and test equip

Our business could be harmed if we asblento develop and utilize new technologies tlatress the needs of our customers, or our
competitors or customers do so more effectively tha do.

Our efforts to develop new technologies may not raft in commercial success, which could cause a di in our revenue and could
harm our business.

Our research and development efforts véiipect to new technologies may not result inacuet or market acceptance. Some or all of
those technologies may not successfully make thesition from the research and development lalost-effective production as a result of
technology problems, competitive cost issues, ypettblems, and other factors. Even when we suaglgssbmplete a research and
development effort with respect to a particulahtemogy, our customers may decide not to introchramay terminate products utilizing the
technology for a variety of reasons, including fibiowing:

. difficulties with other suppliers of components the products
. superior technologies developed by our competaasunfavorable comparisons of our solutions witsé technologie

. price considerations, ar
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. lack of anticipated or actual market demand forpgtaslucts

The nature of our business requires usake continuing investments for new technologiégnificant expenses relating to one or nn
new technologies that ultimately prove to be uneastul for any reason could have a material adwedffeet on us. In addition, any
investments or acquisitions made to enhance otintdogies may prove to be unsuccessful. If ourreffare unsuccessful, our business could
be harmed.

We may not be able to enhance our existing produsblutions and develop new product solutions in artiely manner.

Our future operating results will depgad significant extent on our ability to contintieeprovide new interface solutions that compare
favorably with alternative solutions on the badisime to introduction, cost, and performance. Guecess in maintaining existing and
attracting new customers and developing new busidepends on various factors, including the follayi

. innovative development of new solutions for custopreducts

. utilization of advances in technolog

. maintenance of quality standar

. efficient and co«-effective solutions, an

. timely completion of the design and introductiomefwv interface solution:

Our inability to enhance our existing gwot solutions and develop new product solutiona timely basis could harm our operating
results and impede our growth.

A technologically new interface solution that achiees significant market share could harm our busines

Our interface solutions are designedhtegrate touch, handwriting, and vision capabgitidew computing and communications
devices could be developed that call for a differeterface solution. Existing devices also coutdnhodified to allow for a different interface
solution. Our business could be harmed if our petglbecome noncompetitive as a result of a teclgnzdbbreakthrough that allows a new
interface solution to displace our solutions ande&ee significant market acceptance.

International sales and manufacturing risks could aversely affect our operating results.

Our manufacturing and assembly operatéwagprimarily conducted in China, Thailand, Hongnl§, and Taiwan by manufacturing
contractors. We have sales and logistics operatiohlong Kong, sales support operations in Japaiwdn, and China, and research and
development activities in the United Kingdom. Thagernational operations expose us to various @air political, and other risks that
could adversely affect our operations and operatisglts, including the following:

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managing @ti-national organizatior
. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremt

. differing labor regulations

. potentially adverse tax consequent

. tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restmd,

. possible employee turnover or labor unr

. greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivat
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. the burdens and costs of compliance with a vagéfgreign laws,
. potentially reduced protection for intellectual peaty rights, an
. political or economic instability in certain padbthe world.
The risks associated with internatioramations could negatively affect our operatingiitss
Our business may suffer if international trade is lindered, disrupted, or economically disadvantaged.

Political and economic conditions abro@aly adversely affect the foreign production ané sdlour products. Protectionist trade
legislation in either the United States or foreogmntries, such as a change in the current tarifEtres, export or import compliance laws
other trade policies, could adversely affect oulitgtio sell interface solutions in foreign marketnd to obtain materials or equipment from
foreign suppliers.

Changes in policies by the U.S. or fongigvernments resulting in, among other thingshdigaxation, currency conversion
limitations, restrictions on the transfer of fundsthe expropriation of private enterprises alsold have a material adverse effect on us. Any
actions by countries in which we conduct businesgverse policies that encourage foreign investmeforeign trade also could adversely
affect our operating results. In addition, U.Sdé&aolicies, such as “most favored nation” stattsteade preferences for certain Asian
nations, could affect the attractiveness of ouvises to our U.S. customers and adversely impacbperating results.

Our operating results could be adversely affectedybfluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaist foreign currencies.

We transact business predominantly in ddlars and bill and collect our sales in U.Slats. A weakening of the dollar could cause
our overseas vendors to require renegotiationeptices we pay for their goods and services. érfakure, customers may make payments in
non-U.S. currencies. In addition, approximately &6ur costs are denominated in non-U.S. currengiekiding British pounds, Hong Kong
dollars, Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan, and Taiwdarslol

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchangges could affect our cost of goods, operatimeeses, and operating margins and could
result in exchange losses. In addition, currencsaligtion can result in a loss to us if we holdate{s of that currency. Hedging foreign
currencies can be difficult, especially if the ety is not freely traded. We cannot predict thpdat of future exchange rate fluctuations on
our operating results. We currently do not hedgefareign currencies, accordingly, we have no fgmeturrency hedge contracts outstanding
as of the end of our fiscal year.

A majority of our contract manufacturers are located in Taiwan, Thailand, Hong Kong, and China, increaing the risk that a natural
disaster, labor strike, war, or political unrest inthose countries would disrupt our operations.

A majority of our contract manufacturars located in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and China. Eventsof our control, such as earthquakes,
fires, floods, or other natural disasters or pcditiunrest, war, labor strikes, or work stoppagethese countries would disrupt their
operations, which would impact our operations. Tkl of earthquakes in Taiwan is significant beeaokits proximity to major earthquake
fault lines. An earthquake, such as the one thatroed in Taiwan in September 1999, could causafgignt delays in shipments of our
product solutions until we are able to shift outsourced operations. In addition, there is politteasion between Taiwan and China, which
could lead to hostilities. If any of these eventsuwr, we may not be able to obtain alternative ciypaFailure to secure alternative capacity
could cause a delay in the shipment of our prodakttions, which would cause our revenue to flugtua decline.

Variability of customer requirements resulting in cancellations, reductions, or delays may adverselyffact our operating results.

We must provide increasingly rapid praducnaround and respond to ever-shorter lead tithemriety of conditions, both specific to
individual customers and generally affecting thendad for the OEM’s products,
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may cause customers to cancel, reduce, or del@&yr@ancellations, reductions, or delays by aifsigmt customer or by a group of
customers could adversely affect our operatinglt®0n occasion, customers require rapid incre@spsoduction, which can strain our
resources and reduce our margins. Although we baga able to obtain increased production capaty Dur third-party manufacturers, we
may be unable to do so at any given time to meetasiomers’ demands if their demands exceed pat®il levels.

Our operating results may experience significant fictuations that could result in a decline in the pice of our stock.

In addition to the variability resultifigpm the short-term nature of our customers’ commaitts, other factors contribute to significant
periodic and seasonal quarterly fluctuations inresults of operations. These factors include dfiewing:

. the cyclicality of the markets we sen

. the timing and size of order

. the volume of orders relative to our capac

. product introductions and market acceptance of piducts or new generations of produ
. evolution in the life cycles of our custom’ products;

. timing of expenses in anticipation of future ordk

. changes in product mix, including the percentagauafl pointing and single pointing products shipg
. availability of manufacturing and assembly servi

. changes in cost and availability of labor and congps;

. timely delivery of product solutions to custome

. pricing and availability of competitive produc

. introduction of new technologies into the marketsserve

. pressures on reducing selling pric

. the absolute and relative levels of corporate eniter and consumer notebook purchases:
. changes in economic conditiot

Accordingly, you should not rely on petito-period comparisons as an indicator of ourripperformance. Negative or unanticipated
fluctuations in our operating results may resubt idecline in the price of our stock.

If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our irfrastructure, management, and resources could berstined, our ability to effectively
manage our business could be diminished, and our emating results could suffer.

The failure to manage our growth effeglpvcould strain our resources, which would impedeability to increase revenue. We have
increased the number of our interface solutionsmand to expand further the number and diversitgwfsolutions and their use in the future.
Our ability to manage our planned diversificatiom growth effectively will require us to

. successfully hire, train, retain, and motivate iddal employees, including employees outside thidd States
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. enhance our global operational, financial, and rgameent systems; ai
. expand our production capaci

As we expand and diversify our product anstomer base, we may be required to increasevauhead and operating expenses. We
also may be required to increase staffing and atkpenditures, including expenses in order to rfeeanticipated demand of our customers.
Our customers, however, do not commit to firm piithin schedules for more than a short time in adeaAny increase in expenses in
anticipation of future orders that do not materialivould adversely affect our profitability. Ourstomers also may require rapid increases in
design and production services that place an exeeskort-term burden on our resources and thairese of our thirdsarty manufacturers.
we cannot manage our growth effectively, our bussrend results of operations could suffer.

We depend on key personnel who would be difficultot replace and our business will likely be harmed #ive lose their services or canni
hire additional qualified personnel.

Our success depends substantially oeffbets and abilities of our senior managementtaatinical personnel. The competition for
qualified management and technical personnel, édpeengineers, is intense. Although we maintaimeompetition and nondisclosure
covenants with most of our key personnel, we ddhaee employment agreements with most of them.ld$seof services of one or more of
our key employees or the inability to hire, traand retain key personnel, especially engineerdesithical support personnel, and capable
sales and customer-support employees outside thhedfstates, could delay the development and dadergroducts, disrupt our business,
and interfere with our ability to execute our besis plan.

Our inability to protect our intellectual property could impair our competitive advantage, reduce ourevenue, and increase our costs.

Our success and ability to compete dejrepart on our ability to maintain the propriet@spects of our technologies and products
rely on a combination of patents, copyrights, traderets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemenmid,odher contractual provisions to protect
our intellectual property, but these measures mayige only limited protection. We license fromrthparties certain technology used in and
for our products. These third-party licenses aesntgrd with restrictions, and there can be no assasathat such third-party technology will
remain available to us on terms beneficial to us: f@ilure to enforce and protect our intellectpedperty rights or obtain from third parties
the right to use necessary technology could havetarial adverse effect on our business, finargadition, and results of operations. In
addition, the laws of some foreign countries doprotect proprietary rights as fully as do the lafshe United States.

Patents may not issue from the patenliGgijons that we have filed or may file in thedta. Our issued patents may be challenged,
invalidated, or circumvented, acthims of our patents may not be of sufficient scopstrength, or issued in the proper geograggimns, t¢
provide meaningful protection or any commercialatdage. We have not applied for, and do not hawecapyright registration on our
technologies or products. We have applied to registrtain of our trademarks in the United Statesather countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations of @pte or other trademarks in key markets. Failorelitain registrations could compromise
ability to protect fully our trademarks and bramasl could increase the risk of challenge from tpadies to our use of our trademarks and
brands.

We do not consistently rely on writtemements with our customers, suppliers, manufactuaed other recipients of our technologies
and products, and therefore some trade secretgpimtanay be lost and our ability to enforce ouellectual property rights may be limited.
Additionally, our customers, suppliers, manufaatsirand other recipients of our technologies awmdipects may seek to use our technologies
and products without appropriate limitations. la fhast, we did not consistently require our empgyend consultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements, employment agreememtgroprietary information and invention assignmagiteements. Therefore, our former
employees and consultants may try to claim someeostip interest in our technologies and productsraay use our technologies and
products competitively and without appropriate tations.
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We may be required to incur substantial expenses andivert management attention and resources in defeling intellectual property
litigation against us.

We may receive notices from third parttest claim our products infringe their rights. fréime to time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights sucltiga have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietagits of others. While we are not currently subjeany infringement claim, any future claim,
with or without merit, could result in significalitigation costs and diversion of resources, inglgdhe attention of management, and could
require us to enter into royalty and licensing agrents, any of which could have a material adveffeet on our business. There can be no
assurance that such licenses could be obtainedromercially reasonable terms, if at all, or tha&t tbrms of any offered licenses would be
acceptable to us. If forced to cease using sudintdogy, there can be no assurance that we wousbleeto develop or obtain alternate
technology. Accordingly, an adverse determinatioa judicial or administrative proceeding or fafluo obtain necessary licenses could
prevent us from manufacturing, using, or sellingaia of our products, which could have a mateihterse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Furthermore, parties making such claimdd secure a judgment awarding substantial damagesell as injunctive or other equitable
relief that could effectively block our ability tnake, use, or sell our products in the United Stateabroad. Such a judgment could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations. In additie,are obligated under certain agreements to
indemnify the other party in connection with infyjgment by us of the proprietary rights of thirdtjge. In the event we are required to
indemnify parties under these agreements, it chale a material adverse effect on our businesmdial condition, and results of operatic

We may incur substantial expenses and divert manageent resources in prosecuting others for their unathorized use of our
intellectual property rights.

The markets in which we compete are datarazed by frequent litigation regarding patentd ather intellectual property rights. Other
companies, including our competitors, may devetmhnologies that are similar or superior to ouhtetogies, duplicate our technologies, or
design around our patents and may have or obtéémizaor other proprietary rights that would preyémit, or interfere with our ability to
make, use, or sell our products. Effective intéllat property protection may be unavailable ort@diin some foreign countries, such as
China and Taiwan, in which we operate. Unauthorjzadies may attempt to copy or otherwise use aspéour technologies and products
that we regard as proprietary. There can be naasse that our means of protecting our proprietifyts in the United States or abroad will
be adequate or that competitors will not indepetigelevelop similar technologies. If our intelleatyproperty protection is insufficient to
protect our intellectual property rights, we cotdde increased competition in the market for ooht®logies and products.

Should any of our competitors file patapplications or obtain patents that claim invemialso claimed by us, we may choose to
participate in an interference proceeding to deigerthe right to a patent for these inventions heeaur business would be harmed if we fail
to enforce and protect our intellectual properghts. Even if the outcome is favorable, this proaeg could result in substantial cost to us
disrupt our business.

In the future, we also may need to fileduits to enforce our intellectual property rightsprotect our trade secrets, or to determine the
validity and scope of the proprietary rights ofeath This litigation, whether successful or unsastid, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources, which could have a matewdakrse effect on our business, financial congitimd results of operations.

If we become subject to product returns and productiability claims resulting from defects in our products, we may fail to achieve
market acceptance of our products and our businesuld be harmed.

We develop complex products in an evagvimarketplace and generally warrant our produats foeriod of 12 months or more from
date of sale. Despite testing by us and our cusmrdefects may be found in existing or new prosluct fiscal 2001, a manufacturing erro
one of our manufacturing subcontractors was dissalzeAlthough the error was promptly discoverechwitt significant interruption of
supply and the manufacturing subcontractor rectifiee problem at its own cost, any such manufawgueirors or product defects could result
in a delay in recognition or loss of revenue, loSmarket share, or failure to achieve market
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acceptance. Additionally, these defects could tesdinancial or other damages to our customeaisise us to incur significant warranty,
support, and repair costs; and divert the atterdfarur engineering personnel from our product twment efforts. In such circumstances,
our customers could also seek and obtain damagesus for their losses. A product liability clainolbight against us, even if unsuccessful,
would likely be time-consuming and costly to defefide occurrence of these problems would likelyrhaur business.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve thewbjectives, and the failure to do so could impedaur growth.

We anticipate that we will enter intoagégic alliances. Among other matters, we contigueadplore strategic alliances designed to
enhance or complement our technology or to wordomjunction with our technology; to provide necegdaow-how, components, or
supplies; and to develop, introduce, and distrifputelucts utilizing our technology. Any strategiiiamces may not achieve their intended
objectives, and parties to our strategic allianmayg not perform as contemplated. The failure o$¢halliances may impede our ability to
introduce new products and enter new markets.

Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficlt to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockolder value, and harm our
operating results.

We expect to review opportunities to aegother businesses and technologies in ordesrigptement our current interface solutions,
expand the breadth of our markets, enhance ounitsditapabilities, or otherwise offer growth opjpmities. While we have no current
definitive agreements underway, we may acquirentassies, products, or technologies in the futumeelfake any future acquisitions, we
could issue stock that would dilute existing staaklers’ percentage ownership, incur substantiat,dgbassume contingent liabilities. Our
experience in acquiring other businesses and téafjies is limited. Potential acquisitions also ilmeonumerous risks, including the
following:

. problems assimilating the purchased operationBntdogies, or product:

. unanticipated costs associated with the acquisi

. diversion of manageme’'s attention from our core business

. adverse effects on existing business relationshiftssuppliers and custome!

. risks associated with entering markets in whichharee little or no prior experience; a
. potential loss of key employees of purchased orggions.

We cannot assure you that we would beessful in overcoming problems encountered in cotiore with any acquisitions, and our
inability to do so could disrupt our operations auyersely affect our business.

The PC and electronics industries are cyclical anthay result in fluctuations in our operating resultsand stock price.

The PC and electronics industries haygegnced significant economic downturns at vartimes. These downturns are characterized
by diminished product demand, accelerated erodiaverage selling prices, and production overcdpaki addition, the PC and electronics
industries are cyclical in nature. We seek to reduar exposure to industry downturns and cycligddit providing design and production
services for leading companies in rapidly expandiaystry segments. We may, however, experiencstantial period-to-period fluctuations
in future operating results because of generalstigiconditions or events occurring in the genecainomy.

The valuation of our technology conducted in conneion with our international operating structure may be challenged, which could
result in additional taxes, interest, and penalties

In fiscal 2005, we implemented an intéioreal operating structure. Under the new strugtgemerally, one of our affiliates licensed
from us certain rights to the pre-existing and ingess technology associated with our
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products for exploitation in all geographic markexsept the U.S., Japanese, and Korean marketshwia refer to as “ROW markets.” Our
affiliate also acquired ownership of all future Bomic rights to product sales in ROW markets bggng into an agreement to license cer
intangibles and a cosharing agreement under which we and our affilidtieshare research and development costs in aeocelwith certai
tax rules and regulations. We believe this structuitl result in certain tax advantages to us,thate can be no assurances that this will b
case

We expect to incur additional expenses in complyingith corporate governance and public disclosure rguirements.

Changing laws, regulations, and standegldsing to corporate governance and public d&gle, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, new SEC regulations, and Nasdaqg National &tatkes, are creating uncertainty and increaspéreses for companies such as ours.
These new or changed laws, regulations, and stds@dae subject to varying interpretations in maages due to their lack of specificity and,
as a result, their application in practice may egaver time as new guidance is provided by reguyaand governing bodies, which could
result in continuing uncertainty regarding compti@matters and higher costs necessitated by ongeigjons to disclosure and governance
practices. We are committed to maintaining higihhd#ads of corporate governance and public discoAs a result, our efforts to comply
with evolving laws, regulations, and standards hagalted in, and are likely to continue to resulincreased general and administrative
expenses and a diversion of management time agtiatt from revenue-generating activities to comanptie activities. In particular, our
efforts to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002 and the related regulations rdiey our required assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting and outernal auditorsaudit of that assessment has required the commitofiesignificant financia
and managerial resources. We expect these eftorégjtiire the continued commitment of significaegaurces. In addition, it has become
more difficult and more expensive for us to obtdirector and officer liability insurance. As a réswe may have difficulty attracting and
retaining qualified board members, which could hatmbusiness. If our efforts to comply with newcbianged laws, regulations, and
standards differ from the activities intended bgulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguitieates to practice, our reputation may be
harmed.

Future changes in financial accounting standards opractices may cause adverse unexpected fluctuat®and affect our reported
results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or astcould have a significant effect on our rembresults of operations. New accounting
pronouncements and varying interpretations of actiog pronouncements have occurred and may ocdheifuture. Changes to existing
rules or the questioning of current practices niyessely affect our reported financial resultster tvay we conduct our business. For
example, the Financial Accounting Standards Boasglissued standards that change U.S. generallptadcaccounting principles to require
companies, including us, to recognize all sharethgmyments to employees, including grants of stetions, in financial statements based
on their fair value and eliminates the pro formatfmte disclosures that were allowed as an altem&i financial statement recognition. This
requirement, while not affecting our cash flow,\ailiversely affect our reported financial resutid anpairs our ability to provide guidance
on our future reported financial results as a tesfuthe variability of the factors used to establthe fair value of stock options.

We increased our leverage as a result of the saleaur 0.75% convertible senior subordinated notes.

As a result of the sale of our 0.75% amtible senior subordinated notes in fiscal 2008 ,imcurred $125 million of indebtedness. As a
result of this indebtedness, our interest paymbhgations have increased. Our interest paymengatibns on the notes will be
approximately $938,000 annually. The degree to whie are now leveraged could have adverse conseegiancluding the following:

. a limitation on our ability to obtain future finaing for working capital, acquisitions, or other pases
. an increase in our vulnerability to industry downtiand competitive pressures; :

. a possible competitive disadvantage with less kged competitors and competitors that may haverattess to capital resourc
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Our ability to meet our debt service ghtions will depend upon our future performanceictviwill be subject to the financial, busine
and other factors affecting our operations, manylith are beyond our control.

Legislation affecting the markets in which we compe could adversely affect our ability to implemenbur iAppliance strategy.

Our ability to expand our business maytheersely impacted by future laws or regulati@st customers’ products may be subject to
laws relating to communications, encryption tecbggl electronic commerce,stgnatures, and privacy. Any of these laws coul@éxygensivi
to comply with, and the marketability of our protkicould be adversely affected.

We must finance the growth of our business and théevelopment of new products, which could have an adrse effect on our
operating results.

To remain competitive, we must continmientake significant investments in research andldpweent, marketing, and business
development. Our failure to increase sufficiently oet sales to offset these increased costs vamiydrsely affect our operating results.

From time to time, we may seek additiceguity or debt financing to provide for funds reegd to expand our business. We cannot
predict the timing or amount of any such requiretsen this time. If such financing is not availabtesatisfactory terms, we may be unabl
expand our business or to develop new busines® atite desired and our operating results mayrsiifbt financing increases expenses and
must be repaid regardless of operating resultsitEfinancing could result in additional dilution existing stockholders.

Continuing uncertainty of the U.S. economy may haveerious implications for the growth and stabilityof our business and may
negatively affect our stock price.

The revenue growth and profitability afrdusiness depends significantly on the overatiated in the notebook computer market and
in the iAppliance and other electronic device mesk8oftening demand in these markets caused hyimggconomic uncertainty may result
in decreased revenue or earnings levels or groatésr The U.S. economy has been historically cgiclind market conditions continue to be
challenging, which has resulted in individuals andhpanies delaying or reducing expenditures. Fudbkys or reductions in spending cc
have a material adverse effect on demand for mdaymts, and consequently on our business, finanoiaition, results of operations,
prospects, and stock price.

The market price of our common stock has been and ay continue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock basn and may continue to be subject to wide fatains in response to various factors,
including the following:

. variations in our quarterly resulf
. the financial guidance we may provide to the pylaity changes in such guidance, or our failuregetrsuch guidanc
. changes in financial estimates by industry or séearanalysts or our failure to meet such estis:

. various market factors or perceived market factimcluding rumors, whether or not correct, inwodvus, our customers, our
suppliers, or our competitor

. announcements of technological innovations by usyasur competitors
. introductions of new products or new pricing pa&by us or by our competitol
. acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or by @mpetitors

. recruitment or departure of key personi
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. the gain or loss of significant orde

the gain or loss of significant custome
. market conditions in our industry, the industri€®or customers, and the economy as a whole
. hedging activities by investors holding position®ur convertible senior subordinated no

In addition, stocks of technology comeariiave experienced extreme price and volume #tiotns that often have been unrelated or
disproportionate to these companies’ operatingoperénce. Public announcements by technology corapamincerning, among other things,
their performance, accounting practices, or legablems could cause the market price of our comstock to decline regardless of our ac
operating performance.

Our charter documents and Delaware law could make imore difficult for a third party to acquire us, and discourage a takeover.

Our certificate of incorporation and thelaware General Corporation Law contain provisithiad may have the effect of making more
difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtaontrol of our company, even when these attemptsbmén the best interests of our
stockholders. Our certificate of incorporation ashorizes our board of directors, without stod#boapproval, to issue one or more series
of preferred stock, which could have voting andvegion rights that adversely affect or dilute wioéing power of the holders of common
stock. Delaware law also imposes conditions oragekiusiness combination transactions with “inter@stockholders.” Our certificate of
incorporation divides our Board of Directors intoee classes, with one class to stand for eleetah year for a three-year term after the
initial election. The classification of directoents to discourage a third party from initiatingraxy solicitation or otherwise attempting to
obtain control of our company and may maintainititembency of our Board of Directors, as this dinue generally increases the difficulty
of, or may delay, replacing a majority of directa@air certificate of incorporation authorizes owaBd of Directors to fill vacancies or newly
created directorships. A majority of the directtivsn in office may elect a successor to fill angarzcies or newly created directorships.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affecexisting stockholders.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may have dfffect of deterring, delaying, or preventing argde in control that might otherwise be in the
best interests of our stockholders. In generatkspaurchase rights issued under the rights planreexercisable when a person or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teaffer or exchange offer of 15% or more of our ceam stock is announced or
commenced. After any such event, our other stoddrslmay purchase additional shares of our comnoak at 50% of the then-current
market price. The rights will cause substantialtitih to a person or group that attempts to acqisren terms not approved by our board of
directors. The rights should not interfere with angrger or other business combination approvedubyoard of directors since the rights
may be redeemed by us at $0.01 per stock purchygeat any time before any person or group acquif® or more of our outstanding
common stock. The rights expire in August 2012.

Sales of large numbers of shares could adverselyfedt the price of our common stock.

All of the 24,184,087 shares of our commstock outstanding as of September 1, 2005 agibleifor resale in the public markets. Of
these shares, 1,341,745 shares held by affiliatesligible for resale in the public markets subjeacompliance with the volume and manner
of sale rules of Rule 144 or 701 under the Seesritict of 1933, as amended, and the balance chttwes are eligible for resale in the public
markets either as unrestricted shares or pursadfate 144(k). In general, under Rule 144 as ctiyém effect, any person (or persons wh
shares are aggregated for purposes of Rule 144)eheficially owns restricted securities with restfe which at least one year has elapsed
since the later of the date the shares were aatjfrioen us, or from an affiliate of ours, is entitleo sell within any three-month period a
number of shares that does not exceed the grefatés of the then outstanding shares of our comnioecksand the average weekly trading
volume in common stock during the four calendarksgaeceding such sale. Sales under Rule 144 adssubject to certain manner-of-sale
provisions and notice requirements and to the aliily of current public information about us. RuW01, as currently in effect, permits our
employees, officers, directors, and consultants pirahase shares pursuant to a written compensaltamyor contract to resell these share
reliance upon Rule 144, but without compliance giplecific restrictions.

28




Table of Contents

Rule 701 provides that affiliates may sell theildR01 shares under Rule 144 without complying withholding period requirement and !
non-affiliates may sell their shares in relianceRuie 144 without complying with the holding perjguliblic information, volume limitation,

or notice provisions of Rule 144. A person whoas an affiliate, who has not been an affiliate witthree months prior to sale, and who
beneficially owns restricted securities with reggeavhich at least two years have elapsed sinedatier of the date the shares were acquired
from us, or from an affiliate of ours, is entitlasell such shares under Rule 144(k) without mk¢g@aiany of the volume limitations or other
requirements described above. Sales of substamtialints of common stock in the public market cauldersely affect prevailing market
prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $lidi@mof common stock and preferred stock for &sce in connection with acquisitions,
which shares generally will be freely tradeablerafheir issuance under Rule 145 of the Securitsunless held by an affiliate of the
acquired company, in which case such shares walubgect to the volume and manner of sale resiristof Rule 144 discussed above. The
issuance or subsequent sale of these shares puiltie market could adversely affect prevailing kedrprices.

We have registered an aggregate of $1iidmnof our 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinatédtes due 2024 (“the Notes”) and the
common stock issuable upon conversion of the Nates.shares issued upon conversion generally wiftdéely tradeable after their issuance
under Rule 145 of the Securities Act, unless hgldrbaffiliate, in which case such shares will bbjsct to the volume and manner of sale
restrictions of Rule 144 discussed above. The is=siar subsequent sale of these shares in thecpubtket could negatively affect the
market price of our common stock.

We have registered for offer and salesti@res of common stock that are reserved formegupursuant to our outstanding stock option
plans and available for issuance pursuant to thd@me stock purchase plan. Shares issued afteffiretive date of such registration
statements upon the exercise of stock options muant to the employee stock purchase plan gepevallbe eligible for sale in the public
market, except that affiliates will continue tosaghject to volume limitations and other requirersasftRule 144. The issuance of such shares
could depress the market price of our common stock.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices as wellaur principal research, development, sales, niagkeand administrative functions are located
in our 70,000 square foot facility in Santa ClaZalifornia to which we relocated in July 2005. Wadiéve this facility will be adequate to
meet our needs into the foreseeable future. Owa/Racific headquarters are located in Hong Kongevive lease approximately 13,300
square feet and our European headquarters aredbica€Cambridge, United Kingdom, where we lease@pmately 5,600 square feet. We
also maintain a 4,800 square foot office in TaiwaB00 square foot office in Japan, a 750 squarkedifice in Shanghai, and have a satellite
sales support office in Thailand.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We currently are not involved in any legeoceeding that we believe would have a mateudllerse effect on our business or financial
condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information on Common Stock

Our common stock has been listed on thedslg National Market under the symbol “SYNA” side@uary 29, 2002. Prior to that, there
was no public market for our common stock. Theofelhg table sets forth
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for the periods indicated the high and low salésgsrof our common stock as quoted on the Nasdéqrivé Market.

High Low

Year ended June 30, 200

First quartel $ 14.9( $ 9.2t

Second quarte $ 15.9¢ $ 10.41

Third quartel $ 22.4; $ 13.32

Fourth quarte $ 21.0C $ 14.6¢
Year ended June 30, 200t

First quartel $ 21.0C $ 13.5¢

Second quarte $ 40.0C $ 20.4:2

Third gquartel $ 41.1¢ $ 20.8C

Fourth quarte $ 24.2: $ 17.7C

On September 1, 2005, the closing saies pf our common stock on the Nasdaqg Nationalketewas $16.22 per share.

Stockholders
As of September 1, 2005, there were apprately 250 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash eindd on our preferred stock or our common stockcWeently plan to retain any earnings to
finance the growth of our business rather tharetpqash dividends. Payments of any cash dividenttsei future will depend on our financial
condition, results of operations, and capital rezaents as well as other factors deemed relevaatibipoard of directors.

Our revolving line of credit also plagestrictions on the payment of any dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In April 2005 our board of directors authodze stock repurchase program for up to $40 miibour common stock on the open market
or in privately negotiated transactions dependipgnumarket conditions and other factors. The pldhtevminate upon the earlier of the
repurchase of $40 million of common stock or oniAp4, 2006. We generally will repurchase our stoaky during our “trading window”,
which starts 48 hours after the public releaseuofquarterly or annual earnings and ends four weeksre the end of our next fiscal quarter
subject to the volume, manner, pricing and timiestrictions of Rule 10b-18. Purchases under tlignam are held as treasury stock.

The following sets forth purchases of our canmstock under the repurchase program during @scal fnonth since the adoption of the
program:

Total Maximum
Number of Dollar Value

Shares of Shares

Average Purchased that May

Total Price as Part of Yet Be

Number Paid Publicly Purchased

of Shares per Announced Under the

Period Purchased Share Program Program
March 27, 200! April 23, 2005 — — — 40,000,000
April 24, 2005- May 21, 200~ 1,139,00! $18.6( 1,139,00! 18,820,00
May 22, 200%- June 25, 200 — — — 18,820,00

Total 1,139,001 1,139,001

Subsequent to June 30, 2005, 1,167,100 shesresrepurchased at an aggregate cost of $18.@mitr an average cost of $16.12 per
share. No further shares will be repurchased utiiteprogram.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years ended June 3C

2001* 2002 2003 2004 2005
(in thousands, except for per share data)
Consolidated Statements of Income Datze
Net revenue $73,69¢ $100,20: $100,70: $133,27¢ $208,13¢
Cost of revenue(1 50,81: 59,01¢ 58,41% 77,24¢ 112,09(
Gross margir 22,881 41,18t 42,28¢ 56,03: 96,04¢
Operating expense
Research and development 11,59( 16,59 19,831 21,41¢ 24,99!
Selling, general, and administrative 9,10¢ 9,87: 10,73t 13,57: 18,42:
Other operating expense (incon — — — (3,800
Amortization of deferred stock compensat 597 452 51€ 517 32¢
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired
intangible assel 784 134 40 — —
Restructuring — — — 432 —
Total operating expens 22,07" 27,05¢ 31,12¢ 35,93¢ 39,94:
Operating incom: 81C 14,13: 11,15¢ 20,09: 56,101
Interest income, ne 18C 32t 904 83:< 2,22¢
Income before provision for income tay 99C 14,45¢ 12,06: 20,92¢ 58,33:
Provision for income taxe 18C 5,05¢ 4,344 7,934 20,34%
Net income $ 8iC $ 9,40( $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99. $ 37,98¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.1: $ 0.7¢C $ 03¢ $ 0.5 $ 1.4¢
Diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.4: $ 031 $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic 6,13¢ 13,52¢ 23,47 24,41¢ 25,73¢
Diluted 19,87¢ 22,54+ 25,13: 27,10¢ 29,76!
* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 consisted of 5Bsa
(1) Amounts exclude amortization of deferred stock cengation as follows
Cost of revenu $ 23 $ 28 $ 28 $ 20 $ 12
Research and developmt 162 167 15¢ 91 8
Selling, general, and administrati 412 25¢ 32¢ 40€ 30¢
Amortization of deferred stock compensat $ 597 $ 458 $ ble $ 517 $ 32¢
June 30,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Cash, cash equivalents, and s-term investment $ 3,76¢ $ 65,18( $ 77,28¢ $ 96,29¢ $ 228,92:
Working capital 12,97 73,31¢ 83,81t 106,62- 235,24(
Total asset 27,15, 90,38: 104,50¢ 132,65: 311,20¢
Long-term debt, capital leases, and equipment
financing obligations, less current porti 1,82¢ 1,75¢ 1,52¢ 1,50(C 126,50(
Total stockholder equity 13,75¢ 74,00: 86,26+ 109,14( 144.,66(

Basic net income per share amounts for eadhdpresented have been computed using the weigivierage number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Diluted net income parelamounts for each period presented have beeputedl) using the weighted aver
number of potentially dilutive shares issuablednmection with stock options under the treasurgkstoethod, and 2) using the weighted
average number of shares issuable in connectidnagitvertible debt under the if-converted metholdemvdilutive.

In fiscal 2001, we recorded amortization obdwill and other intangible assets of $784,000anrection with the acquisition of Absolute
Sensors Limited, or ASL, a United Kingdom company ¢he acquisition of the employees of a formewBaiese sales agent. As a result of
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
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Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibleséts” in fiscal 2002, we ceased amortizing goodwiticordingly, we recorded
amortization of other intangible assets of $134,800 $40,000 in fiscal 2002 and 2003, respectivadgpciated with the ASL acquisition and
the acquisition of the employees of a former Taignsales agent. These assets were fully amoitiZisgal 2003.

Our fiscal year ends on the last SaturdayireJFor ease of presentation in this report, heweall fiscal years have been shown as en
on June 30. Fiscal year 2001 consisted of 53 wégdach of the other years presented consisted ofegks.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May Afect Results

You should read the following discussion andlgsis in conjunction with our financial statenmeahd related notes contained elsewhere in
this report. This discussion contains forwéwdking statements that involve risks, uncertastend assumptions. Our actual results may ¢
materially from those anticipated in these forwhnoking statements as a result of a variety ofdies;tincluding those set forth under “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappf custom-designed user interface solutionsehable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and othertedacc devices. From our inception in
1986 through fiscal 1995, we were a developmergestmmpany, which focused on developing and refioiar pattern recognition and
capacitive sensing technologies, and generatechuevey providing contract engineering and designises. In fiscal 1996, we began
shipping our proprietary TouchPad and are now thddis leading supplier of interface solutions e thotebook computer market and the
HDD portable digital music player market. In fis@8l05, we believe we were the market leader inighog interface solutions for notebook
computers and HDD portable digital music playere Meélieve our market share results from the contibin@f our customer focus, the
strength of our intellectual property, and our @egring know-how, which allow us to design produbtt meet the demanding design
specifications of OEMs.

In April 2000, we began shipping our initialad pointing solution for notebook computers, whietluded third-party products, enabling
PC OEMs to offer end users the combination of laotbuch pad and a pointing stick. In January 20@lachieved our first design win
incorporating our proprietary pointing stick sobrtj TouchStyk, into a dual pointing application e in a notebook computer and began
shipping them in volume in the December 2001 quavtéth our TouchStyk, we offer OEMs the choiceadbuch pad, a pointing stick, or a
combination of both of our proprietary interfacéusions for dual pointing applications.

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemests gaelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed and determinakig, @ollectibility is reasonably assured. Our reveimereased from $73.7 million in fiscal
2001 to $208.1 million in fiscal 2005, a compoumai@al growth rate of approximately 30%. In fisc@D2, we derived 97% of our product
revenue from the personal computer market. By [fi8885, revenue from the personal computer mar&dtdecreased to 59% of our net
revenue.

In June 2003, we acquired NSM Technology Leahjtor NSM, a Hong Kong company. The acquisitioN8M provided us with a highly
skilled and experienced work force to expand oabgl presence and infrastructure to support cust®inghe Asia/Pacific region. Many of
our customers are migrating their manufacturingafens from Taiwan to China, and our OEM custonagesbeginning to establish design
centers in that region. With our expanded globabkpnce, including offices in Taiwan, Hong Kong, &dna, we are better positioned to
provide local sales, operations, and engineeripgaii services to our existing customers, as vaepi@ential new customers, within the
Asia/Pacific region.
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Our manufacturing operations are based oniabla cost model in which we outsource all of ptrduction requirements, eliminating the
need for significant capital expenditures and aif@aus to minimize our investment in inventoriekisTapproach requires us to work closely
with our manufacturing subcontractors to ensurejade production capacity to meet our forecastéuhve requirements. We provide our
manufacturing subcontractors with six-month rollfogecasts and issue purchase orders based omtizipated requirements for the next
90 days. However, we do not have any long-term lsuggtracts with any of our manufacturing subcaators. Currently, we use three third-
party manufacturers to provide our proprietary citpee based ASICs, and in certain cases, we relg single source or a limited number of
suppliers to provide other key components of oodpcts. Our cost of revenue includes all costsaatam with the production of our
products, including materials, manufacturing, asseably costs paid to third-party manufacturersratated overhead costs associated with
our manufacturing operations personnel. Additignalll warranty costs and any inventory provisionsvrite-downs are charged to cost of
revenue.

Our gross margin generally reflects the coratiam of the added value we bring to our custom@rsducts in meeting their custom design
requirements and our ongoing cost-improvement iogr These codtaprovement programs include reducing materials@rdponent cos
and implementing design and process improvemenisn@wly introduced products may have lower margias our more mature products,
which have realized greater benefits associated euit ongoing cost-improvement programs. As a tesalv product introductions may
initially negatively impact our gross margin.

Our research and development expenses inelxunses related to product development, engingeriaterials costs, patent expenses
the costs incurred to design interface solutiomgfistomers prior to the customers’ commitmenhtmiporate those solutions into their
products. These expenses have generally increafkstting our continuing commitment to the tectogital and design innovation required
to maintain a leadership position in our existingrkets and to develop new technologies for new etark

Selling, general, and administrative expeimselside expenses related to sales, marketing, dmdngstrative personnel; Sarbanes-Oxley
Act compliance; internal sales and outside salpesentatives’ commissions; market research ansuttimg; and other marketing and sales
activities. These expenses have generally increasiedarily reflecting increased corporate goveg®nosts related to Sarbanes-Oxley Act
compliance, staffing, commission expense associaibdhigher revenue levels, and additional manag@mpersonnel in anticipation of our
continued growth in our existing markets and pextn into new markets.

In connection with the grant of stock optita®ur employees and consultants, we have recatelfedred stock compensation, represer
the difference between the deemed fair value otoutmon stock for financial reporting purposes tiredexercise price of these options at
the dates of grant. Deferred stock compensatipreisented as a reduction of stockholders’ equityisiamortized on a straighihe basis ove
the applicable vesting period. Options grantedgreally subject to a four-year vesting period. Wfe amortizing the deferred stock
compensation over the vesting periods of the agpléeoptions. We recorded expense associated wiérdd stock compensation of
approximately $516,000, $517,000, and $328,00@s0af 2003, 2004, and 2005, respectively. Uporatieption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based PaynfleAS 123R) in fiscal 2006, we will no longer antine deferred stock compensation,
as FAS 123R will require us to expense stock optimased on grant date fair value. The adoptior’Ad E23R will have no effect on our ce
flows, but is expected to have a material advergeact on our results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestegnts in conformity with U.S. generally acceptecoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezbata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenseasyelated disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate atingates, including those related to revenue reitiognallowance for doubtful accounts, ¢
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, providior income taxes, income taxes payable, intapgiskets, and contingencies. We base our
estimates on historical experience, applicable |and various other assumptions that we belie\®teeasonable under the circumstance:
results of which form the basis for making judgnsesibout the carrying value of assets and liakslitiet are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estis under different assumptions or conditions.
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The methods, estimates, interpretations, addments we use in applying our most critical actiog policies can have a significant
impact on the results that we report in our Comlstéid Financial Statements. The Securities anddixgghCommission considers an entity’s
most critical accounting policies to be those pgeahat are both most important to the portraya companys financial condition and rest
of operations, and those that require managemera& difficult, subjective or complex judgmentstesf as a result of the need to make
estimates about matters that are inherently urinestfaen estimated. We believe the following critiaacounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in thpasetion of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemestis gaelivery has occurred or title has
transferred, the price is fixed and determinahig, @ollectibility is reasonably assured. We acdareestimated sales returns and other
allowances, based on historical experience, dirieewe recognize revenue, which is typically ugbipment. We record contract revenue
research and development as the services are prbuitter the terms of the contract. We recognirerafundable contract fees for which no
further performance obligations exist and for whticlre is no continuing involvement by us on theieaof when the payments are received
or when collection is assured.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accountsestimated losses resulting from the inabilitco$tomers to meet their financial
obligations. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate tfiectibility of accounts receivable based on a boration of factors. In circumstances in
which we are aware of a specific customer’s potimability to meet its financial obligation, weaord a specific reserve of the bad debt
against amounts due. In addition, we make judgmamdsestimates on the collectibility of accountseieable based on our historical bad ¢
experience, customers’ creditworthiness, curreahemic trends, recent changes in customers’ paytreamds, and deterioration in the
customers’ operating results or financial positidrtircumstances change adversely, additionaldsddt allowances may be required.

Inventory

We state our inventories at the lower of avsharket. We base our assessment of the ultireatization of inventories on our projections
of future demand and market conditions. SuddenmEsin demand, rapid product improvements, orrteldgical changes, or any
combination of these factors, can cause us to Bavess or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing basiseview for estimated obsolete or
unmarketable inventories and write down our invaatoto their net realizable value based upon orgdasts of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are les®fable than our forecasts, additional inventoserees may be required. The following
factors influence our estimates: changes to oralltions of customer orders, unexpected declirdeimand, rapid product improvements
technological advances, and termination or chabgesir OEM customers of any product offerings ipawating our product solutions.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from oantract manufacturers when a customer’s delivengduale is delayed or a customer’s order
is cancelled. In those circumstances we considethven a writedown is required to reduce the carrying value efittventory purchased to
net realizable value.

Product Warrantie:

We provide for the estimated cost of produatranties at the time we recognize revenue. Ouramgy obligation is affected by product
failure rates, materials usage, rework, and defigests incurred in correcting a product failuree ¥kercise judgment in determining the
estimates underlying our accrued warranty liahilitie actual results with regard to warranty exjitengs could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results if the actual aftanit failure or the associated costs of repaieplacement are greater than what we used in
estimating the accrued warranty liability.
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Income Taxe

We recognize federal, state, and foreign cuiiax liabilities or assets based on our estirohtaxes payable or refundable in the then
current fiscal year for each tax jurisdiction. Wsoarecognize federal, state, and foreign defeiardiabilities or assets for our estimate of
future tax effects attributable to temporary diéieces and carryforwards and record a valuatiomvatae to reduce any deferred tax assets by
the amount of any tax benefits that, based on alviailevidence and our judgment, are not expectbd tealized. If our assumptions, and
consequently our estimates, change in the futheeyaluation allowance we have established fodeterred tax assets may be changed,
which could impact income tax expense.

We account for income tax contingencies iroedance with Statement of Financial Accounting 8gads No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies”. The calculation of tax liabilitiesrolves significant judgment in estimating the mepof uncertainties in the application of
complex tax laws. Resolution of these uncertairities manner inconsistent with our expectationdccbave a material impact on our results
of operations and financial condition. We believe iave adequately provided for reasonably foreseeaidcomes in connection with the
resolution of income tax contingencies. However,regults have in the past, and could in the futindude favorable and unfavorable
adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities in pleeiod an assessment is made or resolved or lgoexpiration of a statute of limitation.
Accordingly, our effective tax rate could fluctuaaterially from quarter to quarter.

In our first quarter of fiscal 2006, we willapt FAS 123R and expense the grant date fair w@&lstock options. In connection with the
expensing of the grant date fair value of stockons, we will set up deferred tax benefit on thé@pexpense associated with nonqualified
stock options, but under current tax accountingddiads can not set up deferred tax benefit fopfiten expense associated with qualified
stock options. For qualified stock options we wd@tord tax benefit only in the event of a futureig@e: disqualifying disposition of the
underlying stock by employees. Accordingly, as g not record tax benefit for the option expenseeiated with qualified stock options
until the occurrence of a future disqualifying disftion of the underlying stock by employees, auufe quarterly and annual effective tax
rates will be subject to greater volatility and aibility to reasonably estimate our future quaytaridd annual effective tax rates will be
negatively impacted as a result of our adoptiorA$ 123R.
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Results of Operations
The following table presents our historicaémgting results for the periods indicated as agdage of revenue.

Years Ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005
Net revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenu _58.(% _58.(% 53.9%
Gross margir _42.(% _42.(% _46.1%
Operating expense
Research and developmt 19.7% 16.1% 12.(%
Selling, general, and administrati 10.7% 10.2% 8.2%
Other operating expense (incon 0.C% 0.C% (1.8%
Amortization of deferred stock compensat 0.5% 0.4% 0.1%
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired intablgi asset 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Restructuring 0.C% 0.2% 0.C%
Total operating expens: 30.% 27.(% 19.2%
Operating incom: 11.1% 15.(% 26.%
Interest incom: 1.1% 0.8% 1.6%
Interest expens _(0.2% _(0.)% _(0.95%
Income before provision for income tay 12.(% 15.7% 28.(%
Provision for income taxe 4.3% _6.C% 9.8%
Net income 7.1% 9.7% _18.2%

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2004

Net RevenueéNet revenue was $208.1 million for the year endete B0, 2005 compared with $133.3 million for tlearyended June 30,
2004, an increase of 56%. The increase in net tevems primarily attributable to a 69% increaseriit shipments for the year ended
June 30, 2005 compared with the year ended Jur@08@, The impact of the increase in unit shipmeras partially offset by a reduction in
overall average selling prices, resulting from arae in product mix and general competitive prigingssure. Net revenue from dual poin
applications declined to 16% of net revenue fonsar ended June 30, 2005 compared with 27% afewenue for the year ended June 30,
2004. The decrease in net revenue from dual pgiratpplications reflected the continuing shift tod/aingle pointing solutions, driven by the
combination of consumer and small business demamidw-priced notebook computers and the impactonfipetitive solutions in the dual
pointing segment of the notebook market. Our norr&®¥@nue grew to approximately 41% of net revemudhfe year ended June 30, 2005 up
from approximately 16% of net revenue for the yeraded June 30, 2004, primarily driven by increatmdand for HDD portable digital
music players utilizing our capacitive interfacéusions.

Gross Margin.Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wa%46r the year ended June 30, 2005, comparedA&itbb for the ye:
ended June 30, 2004. The improvement in gross masya percentage of net revenue primarily reftettte benefit of a favorable product
mix, improved manufacturing yields, and lower mamutdiring costs, which were driven by the combimatibour continuing design and
process improvement programs and lower materiatgnably, and test costs, partially offset by loaegrage selling prices resulting from
general competitive pricing pressure.

Research and Development ExpenBesearch and development expenses decreasedagrtpge of net revenue to 12.0% from 16.1%,
while spending on research and development aetiviticreased 16.7% to $25.0 million from $21.4ionilifor the years ended June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The increase in researdtdanelopment expenses reflected higher employepensation costs resulting from
additional staffing, increased base compensatilated to our annual performance review processhagtter incentive pay, increased
equipment costs, and higher travel related costsiglly offset by lower outside services costs.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenslling, general, and administrative expenses dseckas a percentage of net revenue to
8.9% from 10.2%, while spending on selling, geneaatl administrative activities increased 35.8%18.4 million from $13.6 million for the
years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectiviadyintrease in selling, general, and administratikmenses reflected higher emplo
compensation costs resulting
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from additional staffing, increased base compeasattlated to our annual performance review prqoass higher incentive pay, increased
corporate governance costs in connection with $mdb®xley Act compliance, increased legal fees,tagider travel related costs.

Other operating expense (incomBlring the year ended June 30, 2005, we enteredhitoss license agreement with a competitor. The
cross licenses in the agreement are worldwide a@xahisive, non-transferable, and royalty-free. Thess license agreement settles certain
intellectual property claims of the parties andtears mutual releases of the intellectual propeldyms of the parties. In connection with the
cross license agreement, which does not providarfgrfuture service obligations or commitments fresnwe received a one-time payment,
which is included as other operating expense (irgom

Amortization of Deferred Stock Compensatibine year ended June 30, 2005 included amortizatipense for deferred stock
compensation of $328,000 compared with $517,00thyear ended June 30, 2004. Upon the adopti&6ABf123R in the first quarter of
fiscal 2006, we will no longer amortize deferredcdt compensation, as FAS 123R will require us foe@se stock options based on grant date
fair value.

Restructuringln June 2003, we completed the acquisition of N8Mtonnection with the acquisition of NSM, we idéeat duplicate
operational positions at our San Jose and Taiweatitlns, resulting in a $432,000 restructuring ghan the first quarter of fiscal 2004,
consisting primarily of severance costs for terrredeemployees.

Operating IncomeWe generated operating income of $56.1 millior2@©9% of net revenue, for the year ended June@Ih 2ompared
with $20.1 million, or 15.0% of net revenue, foetpear ended June 30, 2004. As discussed in teedirey paragraphs, the improvement in
operating income was primarily a result of the @ased operating leverage from the 56% increasetiremenue as both research and
development and selling, general, and adminiseagikpenses declined as a percentage of net reasnuell as the higher gross margin
percentage.

Interest Incomelnterest income was $3.4 million for the year endede 30, 2005 compared with $1.0 million for tearyended June 30,
2004. The $2.4 million increase in interest incaesulted from a combination of substantially higaeerage invested cash balances and
higher average interest rates. The increase inlzasinces was primarily the result of the net qgasleeeds of $120.7 million received from
the issuance of our convertible senior subordinatgds in December 2004 aided by $42.5 millioneaifaash flows from operations.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $1.1 million for the year dnime 30, 2005 compared with $134,000 for the gaded June 30,
2004. The $1.0 million increase in interest expearsealted from the combination of interest expears® amortization of debt issuance costs
related to our convertible senior subordinated :icgsued in December 2004. The annual debt sereigteon the notes is approximately
$938,000, exclusive of the amortization of debtigsse costs.

Provision for Income Taxe$he provision for income taxes for the year endete B0, 2005 was $20.3 million compared with
$7.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2004 ¢ectiihg the higher preax profit levels. The income tax provision reprgseestimated feder:
foreign, and state taxes for the years ended Jon20®5 and 2004. The effective tax rate for ther ymded June 30, 2005 was approximately
34.9% and diverged from the combined federal aat Statutory rate primarily due to the tax impefdbreign operations, the release of tax
contingency accruals associated with income taleissettled during the year, the benefit of re$eand development tax credits, and tax
exempt interest income, partially offset by otherrpanent taxable differences. The effective ta fat the year ended June 30, 2004 was
approximately 37.9% and diverged from the combifeeltral and state statutory rate primarily duéhtotienefit of research and development
tax credits, and tax exempt interest income, drtidfset by other permanent taxable differences.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 compared with fiscal year ended June 30, 2003

Net RevenueéNet revenue was $133.3 million for the year endete B0, 2004 compared with $100.7 million for tlearyended June 30,
2003, an increase of 32.3%. The increase in netway was primarily attributable to a more than 56€tease in unit shipments, partially
offset by a reduction in overall average unit sellprice resulting from a change in product mix gederal competitive pricing. Net revenue
from dual pointing applications declined to 27%athl net revenue for the year ended June 30, 200vpared with 39% of
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total net revenue for the year ended June 30, Z0@8decrease in net revenue from dual pointindieatjons reflected the continuing shift
toward single pointing solutions, driven by the ddnation of consumer and small business demankbeipriced notebook computers and
the impact of competitive solutions in the dualniig segment of the notebook market. Our non-R@€mee grew to approximately 16% of
net revenue for the year ended June 30, 2004 fpproaimately 7% of net revenue for the year endate B0, 2003, primarily driven by
increased demand for portable digital entertainrdentces that utilize our capacitive interface sohs.

Gross Margin.Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue w@%42r the year ended June 30, 2004, unchangedtire2.0% for th
year ended June 30, 2003. Gross margin as a pageeof net revenue was unchanged as the impaagoireg competitive pricing pressur
resulting in lower average selling prices wereetffsy lower manufacturing costs, driven by the coration of our continuing design and
process improvement programs and lower materialsaasembly costs.

Research and Development ExpenBesearch and development expenses decreasedagrtpge of net revenue to 16.1% from 19.7%,
while spending on research and development aetviticreased 8.0% to $21.4 million from $19.8 mwiillfor the years ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The increase in researdldanelopment spending reflects higher employeepemsation costs from increased
staffing, our annual performance review processiacehtive pay programs, project related experesed to a lesser extent, higher patent
related expenses, partially offset by lower comsgltosts and depreciation charges.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenslling, general, and administrative expenses dserkas a percentage of net revenue to
10.2% from 10.7%, while spending on selling, gehenad administrative activities increased 26.4%18.6 million from $10.7 million for
the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respgcfied increase in selling, general, and admirtisgaspending was attributable to higher
compensation costs associated with our annualwemiecess and incentive pay programs, includingdriggommission expense on higher
revenue, additional expenses related to compliasttenew SEC regulations, tax advisory services|, ganerally higher operating levels.

Amortization of Deferred Stock Compensatibne year ended June 30, 2004 included amortizatipense for deferred stock
compensation of $517,000 compared with $516,00th@year ended June 30, 2003.

Amortization of Goodwill and Other Acquired Intablgi Assetsin prior years, amortization of other intangiblsets related to our
October 1999 acquisition of ASL, a company locate@ambridge, United Kingdom. As of June 30, 2ab8se other intangible assets were
fully amortized. Accordingly, no amortization ofhetr intangible assets was recorded for the yeagdeddne 30, 2004. For the year ended
June 30, 2003, we recorded $40,000 of amortizatiather intangible assets.

Restructuringln June 2003, we completed the acquisition of N8Mtonnection with the acquisition of NSM, we idéet duplicate
operational positions at our San Jose and Taiweatitms, resulting in a $432,000 restructuring ghan the first quarter of fiscal 2004,
consisting primarily of severance costs for terrredeemployees.

Operating IncomeWe generated operating income of $20.1 millionl ®0% of net revenue, for the year ended June@® 2ompared
with $11.2 million, or 11.1% of net revenue, foetpear ended June 30, 2003. As discussed in teedirey paragraphs, the improvement in
operating income was primarily a result of the @age in net revenue coupled with a reduction,es@ntage of net revenue, of research and
development expenses and selling, general, andchistrative expenses.

Net Interest IncomeéNet interest income was $833,000 for the year eddeé 30, 2004 compared with $904,000 for the grded
June 30, 2003, resulting from generally lower iestrates partially offset by the benefit of higheerage cash balances.

Provision for Income Taxe$he provision for income taxes for the year endete B0, 2004 was $7.9 million compared with $4.Bioni
for the year ended June 30, 2003, reflecting thbéri pre-tax profit levels. The income tax provisiepresents estimated federal and state
taxes and foreign taxes associated with our omerain the United Kingdom, Taiwan, and Japan fentbars ended June 30, 2004 and 2003,
and the addition of Hong Kong for the year endeteJ®0, 2004. The effective tax rates for the yeaded June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003
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were 37.9% and 36.0%, respectively, and divergaa the combined federal and state statutory rategpily due to the benefit of research
and development tax credits, and tax exempt int@resme, partially offset by other permanent tdgatifferences.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our unauditedhderly results of operations for the eight quarfer the two-year period ended June 30,
2005. You should read the following table in comjion with the financial statements and relateceaabntained elsewhere in this report. We
have prepared this unaudited information on theeshasis as our audited financial statements. Bbig includes all adjustments, consisting
only of normal recurring adjustments, that we cdeshecessary for a fair presentation of our firemmosition and operating results for the
quarters presented. Past operating results ameegessarily indicative of future operating perfonee, accordingly, you should not draw any
conclusions about our future results from the tssafl operations for any quarter presented.

Three Months Ended

September December March June September December March June
2003 2003 2004 2004 2004 2004 2005 2005
(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Net revenu $ 2957. $ 34,27: $34,28: $35,147 $ 38,09. $ 56,54! $56,66¢ $56,83’
Cost of revenue(1 17,42¢ 20,13« 19,72¢ 19,95¢ 20,89¢ 30,15¢ 30,48. 30,55t
Gross margir 12,14¢ 14,14C 14,55¢ 15,18¢ 17,19: 26,38¢ 26,187 26,28:
Operating expense

Research and development 5,09¢ 513C 5,61: 5,58( 6,04: 6,24¢ 6,157  6,54:

Selling, general, and administrative 3,07¢ 3,29: 3,45z 3,752 3,76¢ 4,38t 4,937 5,332

Other operating expense (income) — — — — — — — (3,800

Amortization of deferred stock compensat 137 13z 12¢ 12C 10z 85 71 70

Restructuring 432 — — — — — — —

Total operating expens 8,73¢ 8,55f 9,19 9,452 9,911 10,727 11,16¢ 8,14¢

Operating incom: 3,40¢ 5,58t 536t 5,73} 7,281 15,667 15,02 18,13}
Interest and other income, r 192 19t 213 233 24z 24€ 63t 1,102
Income before income tax 3,59¢ 578 557¢  5,97( 7,528 15,91¢ 15,657 19,23¢
Provision for income taxe 1,331 2,27¢  2,07: 2,251 3,092 6,18¢ 3,98:  7,08:
Net income $ 2261 $ 3501 $ 350t $371¢ $ 4431 $ 9,72/ $11,67+ $12,15¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 01t $ 014 $ 0.1t $ 0.1¢ $ 03¢ $ 042 $ 047

Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 012 $ 01 $ 01 3 0.1€ $ 03: ¢ 03¢ $ 041
Shares used in computing net income per sl

Basic 24,01 24,117 24,67. 24,87 25,09¢ 25,81¢ 26,31f 25,717

Diluted 26,52° 26,72¢ 27,45. 27,57¢ 27,69 29,37: 31,46« 30,31¢

(1) Excludes the amortization of deferred stock comatass as follows

Three Months Ended
September  December  March June September Decembe March  June

2003 2003 2004 2004 2004 2004 2005 2005
(unaudited)
(in thousands)
Cost of revenu $ 5 % 5 % 5% 5 % 4 % 3% 3 % 2
Research and developmt 30 25 21 15 8 — — —
Selling, general, and administrati 10z 10z 10z 10C 90 82 68 68
Amortization of deferred stock compensat $ 137 $ 132 $ 128 $12C $ 10z $ 85 $ 71 $ 7¢C

(2) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, wmtered into a cross license agreement with a ctitmip@hich is non-exclusive, non-
transferable, and royalty-free. The cross licemgeament settles certain intellectual propertynetaand contains mutual releases of the
intellectual property claims of the parties. In neation with the cross license agreement, whicls ca¢ provide for any future service
obligations or commitments from us, we receiveche-time payment which is included as other operatixjpeese (income

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash, cash equivalents and short-termsinvents were $228.9 million as of June 30, 2005pzoed with $96.3 million as of June 30,
2004. The increase in cash, cash equivalents antishm investments is
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primarily attributable to the combination of theusnce of $125.0 million of convertible senior qulimated notes in December 2004 from
which we received net proceeds of approximatel0$L tillion, and cash generated from operatingviies of $42.5 million in fiscal 2005
due to our strong operating performance.

Cash Flows from Operating ActivitieBuring the year ended June 30, 2005, the net aastided by operating activities of $42.5 million
was primarily attributable to net income of $38.Mlion, plus tax benefit from stock options totai$10.0 million, and adjustments for non-
cash charges for depreciation, amortization of meflestock compensation, amortization of debt issaaosts, and deferred taxes totaling
$3.7 million, partially offset by a net increaseojperating assets and liabilities of $9.1 millidhe net increase in operating assets and
liabilities related primarily to a $11.9 millionénease in accounts receivable and a $12.8 milliorease in other assets consisting mainly of
non-current prepaid taxes associated with ourniatésnal operating structure, partially offset bgher income taxes payable, all of which
reflect our higher operating levels. During theryeaded June 30, 2004, net cash generated fromatomeactivities was $14.8 million,
primarily reflecting our net income of $13.0 miltipplus tax benefit from stock options totalingZbsillion, and adjustments for non-cash
charges for depreciation, amortization of defestidk compensation, and deferred taxes totaling $llion, partially offset by a net
increase in operating assets and liabilities of $3illion. During the year ended June 30, 2003,cash generated from operating activities
was $11.7 million, primarily reflecting our net mme of $7.7 million, plus tax benefit from stocktiops totaling $634,000, and adjustments
for non-cash charges for depreciation, amortizatioacquired intangible assets, deferred stock ersation, and deferred taxes totaling
$1.8 million, and a net decrease in operating ass® liabilities of $1.5 million.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitieQur investing activities typically relate to purska of government-backed securities, investment-
grade fixed income instruments, and auction rateritées and used cash of $137.7 million for tharyended June 30, 2005 compared with
$2.1 million and $18.4 million for the years endkohe 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Net cashingaudesting activities during fiscal
2005 consisted of purchases of $221.4 million fawrsterm investments, $13.8 for purchases of ahp#sets, and a $4.0 million investment
in Foveon, Inc. partially offset by proceeds froates and maturities of $101.5 million for shortateinvestments. Our purchases of capital
assets included our 70,000 square foot buildingtlatin Santa Clara, California. We used approetyal1.7 million of cash for the
purchase and reconfiguration of the building and/edoour San Jose operations into the new faciiitjuly 2005. Net cash used in investing
activities during fiscal 2004 consisted of purclzase$21.2 million for short-term investments, &808,000 for purchases of capital assets,
largely offset by proceeds from sales and matuwritie$19.7 million for short-term investments ahd settlement of $240,000 of restricted
cash. Net cash used during fiscal 2003 consistedi@hases of $25.1 million for short-term investise $1.3 million for capital assets, and
$1.2 million for the acquisition of NSM, of whict240,000 was held as restricted cash, partiallyeotiy cash generated from sales and
maturities of short-term investments.

Cash Flows from Financing ActivitieNet cash provided by financing activities for threays ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005 was
$2.9 million, $5.2 million, and $107.9 million, y@ectively. Our financing activities for the yeadexd June 30, 2005 primarily related to
proceeds from the issuance of $125.0 million ofvestible senior subordinated notes and $8.4 milfrom common stock issued under our
stock option plans and employee stock purchase phatially offset by $21.2 million for the purchesf treasury stock and $4.3 million of
debt issuance costs. Our financing activities fieryears ended June 30, 2003 and 2004 were pymeldted to proceeds from common st
issued under our stock option plans and employsk gturchase plan, and repayment of notes recei\fedih stockholders, less payments
made on capital lease and equipment financing atiigs.

Common Stock Repurchase ProgramApril 2005 our board of directors authorizedt@ck repurchase program for up to $40 million of
our common stock on the open market or in privatelgotiated transactions depending upon marketitomsl and other factors. The number
of shares purchased and the timing of purchadessisd on the level of our cash balances, genesaldss and market conditions, and other
factors, including alternative investment opporti@si Common stock repurchased under this progsdmld as treasury stock and through
June 30, 2005 purchases under this program toial&®,000 shares for an aggregate cost of $211Bmdr an average cost of $18.60 per
share. Subsequent to June 30, 2005, we repurchasattitional 1,167,100 shares under this progmararf aggregate cost of $18.8 millior
an average cost of $16.12 per share. No furtheestvaill be repurchased under this program.

Bank Credit Facility We currently maintain a $15 million working capilizle of credit with Silicon Valley Bank. The Siba Valley Ban}
revolving line of credit, which expires on Noveml2gt, 2005, has an
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interest rate equal to Silicon Valley Bank’s priteading rate and provides for a security interesubstantially all of our assets. We had not
borrowed any amounts under the line of credit aluof 30, 2005.

Convertible Senior Subordinated Notén December 7, 2004 and December 17, 2004, wedssuaggregate of $125 million of 0.75%
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes maturing Ddwm 1, 2024 (the “Notes”) in a private offeringguant to Rule 144A under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In connectiitim iwsuing the Notes, we incurred debt issuanstscnf $4.3 million, consisting primarily
of the initial purchasersliscount and costs related to legal, accountind paimting, which will be amortized over five yeaW¥e expect to us
the net proceeds for working capital and generglaate purposes and potentially for future actjoiss.

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75%apeum payable on December 1 and June 1 of eachbgsanning June 1, 2005, which
represents an annual debt service cost of appréedyn®938,000. However, we will pay additional dogent interest on the Notes if the
average trading price of the Notes is at or ab@@#4 of the principal amount of the Notes for a #jet period beginning with the six-month
period commencing December 1, 2009. The amoundmtirtgent interest payable on the Notes with resfpea six-month period, for which
contingent interest applies, will equal 0.375% g@enum of the average trading price of the Notesifgpecified five trading day period
preceding such six-month period. We are also otdiyo file and maintain a shelf registration staet with the Securities and Exchange
Commission covering resales by the holders of totedland the common stock issuable upon conveositiie Notes. In the event of a
registration default, we will be obligated to paldaional interest of up to 0.5% per annum untitsuegistration default is cured. On June 1,
2005, our Registration Statement for these seeantias declared effective by the Securities andh&@x@e Commission — s&&25 Million
Shelf Registratiobelow. While we do not expect a registration defsmbccur requiring us to pay additional interegt, cannot assure you
that a registration default will not occur in theure.

The Notes are convertible into shares of ammon stock, initially at a conversion rate of 4.8 shares per $1,000 principal amount of
Notes, or a total of 2,473,975 shares of commocksiohich is equivalent to an initial conversiomcerof approximately $50.53 per share
common stock (subject to adjustment in certain &jefihe denominator of the diluted net incomegtere calculation includes the weighted
average effect of the 2,473,975 shares of comnamk $$suable upon conversion of the Notes. Thrddghember 30, 2009, upon the
occurrence of a fundamental change as defineckimthenture governing the Notes, we could potdptia obligated to issue up to 27.7085
shares per $1,000 of principal amount of Notes, ttal of 3,463,562 shares of common stock, whi@guivalent to a conversion price of
$36.09 per share of common stock. The addition)38 shares, contingently issuable upon a fundeahelnange, are not included in the
calculation of diluted net income per share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealendar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in théopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on &s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of thdieadge conversion price on such last trading daypn or after January 1, 2020; (3) if we
have called the Notes for redemption; or (4) dupngscribed periods, upon the occurrence of sgecdorporate transactions or fundamental
changes. On or after December 1, 2009, we may neflecash all or a portion of the notes at a reokgon price of 100% of the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid irttéresuding contingent interest and additionaknatst, if any). Noteholders have the rigt
require us to repurchase all or a portion of theies for cash on December 1, 2009, December 4, 201 December 1, 2019 at a price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the notes t@brchased plus accrued and unpaid interest (ingucbntingent interest and additional
interest, if any). Upon conversion of the Notedjen of delivering common stock, we may, at owgodétion, deliver cash or a combination of
cash and common stock. As of June 30, 2005, notteeafonditions for conversion of the Notes wetésBad.

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatigghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb @ our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othegatltilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofadlur future indebtedness that, by its termspisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.
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Note Payable to a Related Parfyhe long-term note payable of $1.5 million to NaabSemiconductor Corporation (National) represents
limited-recourse debt that is secured solely bprign of our stockholdings in Foveon, Inc. (Fovgan which National is also an investor.
We do not anticipate making any payments undelintfited-recourse loan with National, either priordr at maturity, unless Foveon is
participating in a liquidity event, such as anialipublic offering of its equity securities or anger, through which we would receive amot
in excess of our $1.5 million long-term note pagghlus accrued interest expense.

$100 Million Shelf RegistratioWe have registered an aggregate of $100 milliocoaimon stock and preferred stock for issuance in
connection with acquisitions, which shares gengnaill be freely tradeable after their issuance emBule 145 of the Securities Act, unless
held by an affiliate of the acquired company, inehhcase such shares will be subject to the volantemanner of sale restrictions of
Rule 144.

$125 Million Shelf RegistrationWe have registered an aggregate of $125 millfayuo 0.75% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2024 (the “Notes”) and the common stock issuapbn conversion of the Notes. The shares issped conversion generally will be
freely tradeable after their issuance under Rutedf4he Securities Act, unless held by an afjah which case such shares will be subje
the volume and manner of sale restrictions of Ryl

Liquidity and Capital Resource®/e believe our existing cash, cash equivalentssand-term investment balances and anticipated cash
flows from operating activities will be sufficietd meet our working capital and other cash requir@siover the course of the next 12
months. Our future capital requirements will dependnany factors, including our rate of revenueaghg the timing and extent of spending
to support product development efforts, costs eela protecting our intellectual property, the @&xgion of sales and marketing activities, the
timing of introductions of new products and enhamnegts to existing products, the costs to ensuressdo adequate manufacturing capacity,
the continuing market acceptance of our produeit&wis, our common stock repurchase program, amditiount and timing of our
investments in, or acquisitions of, other techn@s®@r companies. We cannot assure you that fuettpgity or debt financing will be availak
to us on acceptable terms or at all. If sufficiemtds are not available or are not available orpiable terms, our ability to take advantage of
unexpected business opportunities or to respordrtpetitive pressures could be limited or sevetelystrained.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of material contractual obligations and commerctahmitments as of June 30, 2005 (in
millions):

Payments due by peric

Less that 1-3 35 More than

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years
Convertible senior subordinated no $ 12t — — — $ 12t
Note payable 2 — 2 — —
Building lease: 2 1 1 — —
Total $ 12¢ $ 1 $ 3 $ — $ 12E

Our convertible senior subordinated notesuigkela provision allowing the noteholders to requseat the noteholders’ discretion, to
repurchase their notes at a redemption price o%6Dthe principal amount of the notes plus accraied unpaid interest (including
contingent interest and additional interest, if Jaoy December 1, 2009, December 1, 2014, and Dezein2019 and in the event of a
fundamental change as described in the indentwergimg the notes. The early repayment of the ristast reflected in the above schedule,
but if all the noteholders elected to exerciserthights to require us to repurchase their noteBecember 1, 2009, then our contractual
obligations for the 3-5 years period would be iaser by $125 million with a corresponding decréasenounts due in more than 5 years.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any transactions, arrangementgher relationships with unconsolidated erditigat are reasonably likely to affect our
liquidity or capital resources. We have no spegiapose or limited purpose entities
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that provide off-balance sheet financing, liquidity market or credit risk support; or engage asleg, hedging, research and development
services; or other relationships that expose liahdity that is not reflected in the financiabs¢ments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2004, the Emerging Issues Task F&EEH) issued EITF No. 03-01 “The Meaning of Othdrah-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments” (EITF 03-01)TE 03-01 provides guidance with respect to deteingj the meaning of other-than-
temporary impairment and its application to delt aquity securities within the scope of Stateméiftimancial Accounting Standards
No. 115,“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Eg$ecurities”, including investments accounteddoder the cost method and
new disclosure requirements for investments tratlaemed to be temporarily impaired. We understamdrinancial Accounting Standards
Board is currently reconsidering disclosure, meami@nt, and recognition of other-than-temporary inmpants of debt and equity securities
under EITF 03-01. Until new guidance is issued,diselosure requirements of EITF 03-01 were effecfor our fiscal 2005 annual
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the Financial AccountingnBierds Board issued Statement of Financial Accogrtandards No. 151, “Inventory
Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4” (RA8). FAS 151 clarifies that abnormal inventorytsasich as costs of idle facilities,
excess freight and handling costs, and wasted raBtéspoilage) are required to be recognized agnptiperiod costs. The provisions of FAS
151 are effective for our fiscal 2006. The adoptidrAS 151 will not have a material impact on &nancial position, results of operations,
or cash flows.

In December 2004, the Financial Accountingh8#ads Board finalized Statement of Financial Aetimg Standards No. 123R, “Share-
Based Payment” (FAS 123R), amending FAS No. 148cg¥e beginning our first quarter of fiscal 2068\S 123R will require us to
expense stock options based on grant date faievalaur financial statements. Further, the adoptibFAS 123R will require additional
accounting related to the income tax effects amtitiadhal disclosure regarding the cash flow effeetsulting from share-based payment
arrangements. The effect of expensing stock optionsur results of operations using a Black-Schofgnpricing model is presented in ¢
financial statements in Note 1 — Basis of Presemabtock-Based Compensation. We will adopt FASRLA8ing the modified prospective
method and the adoption thereof will have no eftecour cash flows, but is expected to have a nahtdverse impact on our results of
operations. We anticipate the pre-tax charge fd B23R to be in the range of $13.5 million to $1#ibion for fiscal 2006, however, the
actual pre-tax charge could significantly diffeorft our estimate if facts and assumptions usedtima& fair value during fiscal 2006
significantly differ from those used in modelingrastimate.

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting StandaBaard issued Statement of Financial Accountirrg&irds No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections” (FAS 154). FAS Eplaces Accounting Principals Board Opinion No(2BB 20) and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 3 “Reporting &aating Changes in Interim Financial Statementst] applies to all voluntary changes
in accounting principle, and changes the requiresifem accounting for and reporting of a changadoounting principle. APB 20 previously
required that most voluntary changes in accourginciple be recognized by including in net incoaig¢he period of change a cumulative
effect of changing to the new accounting principleereas FAS 154 requires retrospective applicatigrior periods’ financial statements of
a voluntary change in accounting principle, uniegsimpracticable. FAS 154 enhances the consisten financial information between
periods. FAS 154 will be effective beginning thestfiquarter of our fiscal 2007. We do not expeetddoption of FAS 154 will have a
material impact on our financial position, reswfoperations, or cash flows.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes iarggt rates relates primarily to our cash, casivatpnts, and short-term investments. Due to
the conservative nature of our investment portfalibich is predicated on capital preservation amuidity and consists primarily of
government-backed securities and investment-grastauments, we would not expect our operating tesulcash flows to be significantly
affected by changes in market interest rates. Wigotlaise our investment portfolio for trading dnext speculative purposes.

The table below presents principal amountsrataded weighted average interest rates by yearaddirity for our investment portfolio and
debt obligations as of June 30, 2005 (in thousaextsspt for average interest rates):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Assets
Cash equivalent- variable rate
Money Market $6747. ¢ — $ — $ — $ — ¢ — $6747. $ 67,47
Average interest rai 2.2% — — — — — 2.2%
Shor-term investment- variable rate
Auction rate preferre $47328 ¢ — $ — $ — $ — 9 — $47,32¢t $ 47,32
Average interest rai 3.1% — — — — — 3.1%
Asset backed securiti $ 54900 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 540 $ 5,40C
Average interest raf 3.2% — — — — — 3.2%
Municipal securitie: $5203¢ $¢ — $ — $ — $ — ¢ —  $52,03C $ 52,03(
Average interest rai 2.€% — — — — — 2.€%
Shor-term investment- fixed rate
U.S. agencie $ — $800C $ — & — $ — % — $ 8,00C $ 8,00(
Average interest rai — 4.0% — — — — 4.(%
Municipal securitie: $27,28¢ $16,77¢ $ — $ — $ — $ —  $44,06: $ 43,93
Average interest raf 1.% 2.5% — — — — 2.2%
Total shor-term investment $132,04: $2477¢ $ — $ — $ — $ —  $156,81¢ $156,68¢
Average interest rai 2.6% 3.0% — — — — 2.6%
Liabilities
Convertible Senior Subordinated No
Fixed rate amount $ —  $ — $ — $ — $ — $125,000 $125,000 $101,25(
Average interest raf — — — — — 0.7%% 0.7%
Note payable to related pai
Fixed rate amount $ —  $ — %150 $ — $ — % — $ 150C $ 1,50(
Average interest rai — — 6.C% — — — 6.C%

The Notes bear a fixed coupon interest rate @% and mature in December 2024. Accordinglyargenot exposed to changes in interest
rates related to our long-term debt instrumentg fidtes are not listed on any securities exchangeloded in any automated quotation
system. The fair value of the Notes may increasgeorease for various reasons, including fluctuatio the market price of our common
stock, fluctuations in market interest rates, dadtfiations in general economic conditions. Thagpgal and carrying amount of the Notes at
June 30, 2005 was $125 million and the fair valiine notes was approximately $101 million basedjooted market prices.

There have been no significant changes imtheirity dates and average interest rates forrogstment portfolio and debt obligations
subsequent to June 30, 2005.
Foreign currency exchange risk

All of our revenue, cost of revenue, and egesnexcept those expenses directly related tmoak operations in Asia/Pacific and Europe,
are denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, weshralatively little exposure to foreign currencychange risks and foreign exchange losses
have been immaterial to date. We do not
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currently enter into forward-exchange contracteddge exposure denominated in foreign currenciesypother derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposeshénfuture, if our operations change and we deterhat our foreign exchange exposure
has increased, we may consider entering into hgdgamsactions to mitigate such risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statemémésreports of our independent registered pultiéoanting firm, and the notes thereto
commencing at page F-1 of this report, which finalhgtatements, reports, and notes are incorpoteesin by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Prodeires

Under the supervision and with the participatf our management, including our Chief Execu@ficer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofifsgn and operation of our disclosure controts@ecedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchang®f\t934). Based on this evaluation, our chief exige officer and chief financial officer,
as of June 30, 2005, concluded that our disclosomérols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) are effective to ensure itifarmation required to be disclosed by us in tijgort was recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in Securities and Exchange Commission rales forms for this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishimymaintaining adequate internal control ovearitial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended). Under the supervisionaatidthe participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaarabf the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting basedtloa framework innternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$@ased on our evaluation under the frameworktearnal Control—Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting was effective as of J@@e 2005. Our assessment of
the effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of June 30, 2005 has been aulditKPMG LLP, an independent registe
public accounting firm, as stated in their repadiiided herein on page F-3.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal contr@rdinancial reporting during our most recent fiapaarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intekantrol over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our chief executiffecer and chief financial officer, does not exptat our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal controls will preverteator and all fraud. A control system, no matiew well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratdttb objectives of the control system are metthen, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constaartd the benefits of controls must be considegkadive to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidrcontrols can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues, misstatements, errors, and
instances of fraud, if any, within our company haeen or will be prevented or detected. Furthéerimal controls may become inadequate as
a result of changes in conditions, or through teedoration of the degree of compliance with geboor procedures.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There were no items requiring reporting onnk&rK that were not reported on Form 8-K during filvérth quarter of the year covered by
this Form 10-K.
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PART 1lI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item relattagdirectors of our company is incorporated helgimeference to the definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14&efSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 for our 200méal Meeting of Stockholders. The
information required by this Item relating to oxeeutive officers is included in Item 1, “Busines&xecutive Officers.”

We have adopted a code of ethics that apgiesr principal executive officer, principal fingial officer and other senior accounting
personnel. The “Code of Ethics for the CEO and &erinancial Officers” is located on our websitenatw.synaptics.com in the Investor
Relations section under Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requiremenler Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding any amendnenbr waiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics by posting such information on oabsite, at the address and location specified above
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2005 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2005 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2005 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrSigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2005 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Scheths

(1)
()

Financial Statements are listed in the Index togobdated Financial Statements on pa-1 of this report

Financial Statement Schedules: Schedule II, Valnaind Qualifying Accounts is set forth on par1 of this report

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (1
3.2 Bylaws (1)
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate (
4.1 Indenture dated December 7, 2004 by and betweemredierant and American Stock Transfer & Trust @any (6)
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated December 74 2§0and among the registrant, Bear, Stearns &r@o, and Credit Suisse First
Boston LLC (6)
10.1 1986 Incentive Stock Option Plan and form of giegnteement (3
10.z 1986 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and form ofigagreement (&
10.3(a 1996 Stock Option Plan (.
10.3(b Form of grant agreements for 1996 Stock Option P23
10.4 2000 U.K. Approved St-Plan to the 1996 Stock Option Plan and form of gegmeement (3
10.t 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and form ohgemgreement (-
10.6(a Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensatam(B)
10.6(b Form of grant agreements for Amended and Restd@ieti Bxcentive Compensation Plan
10.7(a Corrected Amended and Restated 2001 Employee Staahase Plan (as amended through February 20) 22X
10.7(b 2001 Employee Stock Purchase -Plan for U.K. Employees (¢
10.¢ 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (¢
10.¢ Agreement dated as of October 13, 1999 by and arengegistrant and the Principal Shareholdershsfolute Sensors Limited (
10.11 Master Equipment Lease Agreement dated as of Noge8) 2000 by and between KeyCorp Leasing, a Divisf Key Corporate
Capital Inc., and the registrant |
10.1Z Subordinated Secured Non-Recourse Promissory Ndésl dugust 12, 1997 executed by the registrafaviar of National
Semiconductor Corporation (
10.1: Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agrernhietween the registrant and Federico Faggil
10.1¢ Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agrernietween the registrant and Francis F. Let
10.1t Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreenietween the registrant and Russell J. Knitte
10.1€ Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Augus2B01 between Silicon Valley Bank and the registeenamended through

November 30, 2004 (:
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
10.17 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into fidamuary 28, 2002 with the following directors anacutive officers: Federico
Faggin, Francis F. Lee, Donald E. Kirby, RusseKdittel, Shawn P. Day, David T. McKinnon, Thomas$pade, William T. Stacy,
Keith B. Geeslin, and Richard L. Sanquini, as ofiAp3, 2002 with W. Ronald Van Dell, and as of 26, 2004 with Clark F. Foy
and Jon R. Stone (.
10.1¢ Severance Policy for Principal Executive Offices}
10.1¢ Change of Control and Severance Agreement entatedy Francis F. Lee as of April 22, 2003
10.2C Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreemaeted into by Donald E. Kirby and Russell J. Kelitis of April 22, 2003 (£
10.21 Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 2004 by aodgatine registrant, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., aretli€ Suisse First Boston
LLC (6)
10.2z Settlement Agreement dated March 31, 2005 by arahgrthe registrant, Alps Electric Co. Ltd., andcDie Corporation (8)
12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg
21 List of Subsidiarie:
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, independent registered puddicounting firm
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetkuthe Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amende
31.Z2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amende
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbané&xley
Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the registralRttem 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2891iled with the SEC on February 21,
2002.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the registralRttem 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2@8%jled with the SEC on September 12,
2002.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the registramgggstration statement on Form S-1 (Registration 383-56026) as filed with the SEC
January 22, 2002 and declared effective Januarg(@a.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended December 28, 2002, aswWilddSEC on February 6, 20(

(5) Incorporated by reference to the registraRtiam 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2@8Zjled with the SEC on September 12,
2003.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
(7) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 3, 20
(8) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 1, 2005.

* An application has been submitted to the SECG:émfidential treatment, pursuant to Rule 24b-#hef Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
of portions of this exhibit. These portions havememitted from this exhibi
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, #gistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: September 7, 2005

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

By: /s/ Francis F. Lee

Francis F. Le«

President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidmbolv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#te indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/sl Francis F. Lee

Francis F. Le«

/s/ Russell J. Knittel

Russell J. Knittel

/sl Federico Faggi

Federico Faggil

/sl Keith B. Geeslir

Keith B. Geeslir

/s/ Richard L. Sanquir

Richard L. Sanquir

/s/ W. Ronald Van De

W. Ronald Van Del

President, Chief Executive Officer, and DirectorirBipal
Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, €hdministrative
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer (Principal Finahand
Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Boar

Director

Director

Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidasdhce sheets of Synaptics Incorporated and salisil (the Company) as of June 30,
2004 and 2005, and the related consolidated statsmé&income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensicome, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June(®%.2n connection with our audits of the consdkdéfinancial statements, we also have
audited the financial statement schedule listatiénindex at Item 15(a)(2). These consolidatediire statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express an opinin these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule basedraaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wittsthadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovéaidgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financialtstaents referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of
Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaries as of 30n2004 and 2005, and the results of their ogmratand their cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended June 30, 2005, in conformity WwitS. generally accepted accounting principlesoAh our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when consitlier relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents f
in all material respects, the information set fdatrein.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting as of June 30, 2005, basedriaria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpng Organizations of the Treadway CommissioB$0), and our report dated
September 2, 2005 expressed an unqualified oporiomanagement’s assessment of, and the effectaraiign of, internal control over
financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP
Mountain View, California
September 2, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited management’s assessmentgdattin the Management’s Report on Internal Comtvelr Financial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A, that Synaptics Incorporated (the Gany) maintained effective internal control ovexaiicial reporting as of June 30, 2005,
based on criteria established in Internal Contraitegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sgrimg Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageisieasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting. Our respduildy is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on théiedfeess of the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoraslerance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttlegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsats that could have a material effect on then@iizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment yha@ics Incorporated maintained effective inteawitrol over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all materisjpects, based on criteria established in InterpatitGl—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Synepincorporated maintained, in
material respects, effective internal control dirggncial reporting as of June 30, 2005, basedritaria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiing Organizations of the Treadway CommissioD$0).

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Synaptics Incompa@atd subsidiaries as of June 30, 2004 and 2@0%ha related consolidated statemen
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensivenmeocand cash flows for each of the years in theetlyear period ended June 30, 2005,
and our report dated September 2, 2005 expressedcualified opinion on those consolidated finahstatements.

/sl KPMG LLP
Mountain View, California
September 2, 2005
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $130%1@b at June 30, 2004 and 2005,
respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued compensatic

Income taxes payab

Other accrued liabilitie

Total current liabilities

Note payable to a related pa
Other liabilities
Convertible senior subordinated no

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock; $0.001 par value; 10,000 sharémared; no shares issued and outstan
Common stock; $0.001 par value; 60,000,000 sharéwezed; 24,987,398 and 26,419,447
shares issued at June 30, 2004 and 2005, respg«
Additional paic-in capital
Less: 0 and 1,139,000 common treasury shares at3lyr2004 and 2005, respectively, at |
Deferred stock compensati
Accumulated other comprehensive |i
Retained earning

Total stockholder equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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June 30, June 30,
2004 2005

$ 59,48¢ $ 72,23
36,81( 156,68¢
21,87¢ 33,79(
6,52¢ 7,731
3,08: 3,04¢
127,78: 273,48
1,82¢ 14,61¢
1,927 1,927
1,11% 21,17¢
$ 132,65 $ 311,20!
$ 9,22 $ 12,39(
4,59 5,63¢
4,01¢ 14,86
3,32¢ 5,35:
21,15¢ 38,24¢
1,50( 1,50(

85¢ 1,79

— 125,00(

25 26

88,33¢ 106,68t
— (21,180
(634) (303
(160) (129)
21,57t 59,56(
109,14( 144,66(
$ 132,65: $ 311,20!
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005
Net revenue $ 100,70: $ 133,27t $ 208,13¢
Cost of revenu®) 58,41’ 77,24¢ 112,09(
Gross margir 42,28¢ 56,03: 96,04¢
Operating expense
Research and developm¢?) 19,83} 21,41¢ 24,99:
Selling, general, and administrati() 10,73: 13,57: 18,42
Other operating expense (incon — (3,800
Amortization of deferred stock compensat 51€ 517 32¢
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired intablgi asset 40 — —
Restructuring — 432 —
Total operating expens 31,12¢ 35,93¢ 39,94
Operating incom: 11,15¢ 20,09: 56,107
Interest incom 1,05¢ 967 3,37(
Interest expens (15%) (1349 (1,145
Income before provision for income tay 12,06: 20,92¢ 58,33:
Provision for income taxe 4,344 7,93¢ 20,34’
Net income $ 7,71t $ 12,99: $ 37,98t
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.3t $ 05¢ $ 1.4¢
Diluted $ 0.31 $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic 23,47 24,41¢ 25,73¢
Diluted 25,13: 27,10¢ 29,76
(1) Amounts exclude amortization of deferred stock cengation as follows
Cost of revenu $ 28 $ 20 $ 12
Research and developmt 15¢ 91 8
Selling, general, and administrati 32¢ 40€ 30¢
Amortization of deferred stock compensat $ b51€ $ 517 $ 32¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except for share amounts)

Notes Accumulatec
Additional Deferred Receivable Other Total
Common Stocl Paic-in Treasury Stock From Comprehensiv Retainec  Stockholder
Shares Amount  Capital Stock  Compensatio Stockholder Income/(Loss Earnings Equity
Balance at June 30, 20 23,182,75 $ 23 $ 75,01 $ —$ (1083 (876)% 63 $ 86t $ 74,00:
Components of comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — — 7,71¢ 7,71¢
Net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
investments, net of te — — — — — — 37 — 37
Total comprehensive
income 7,75k
Issuance of common stock from
option exercises and stock
purchase pla 653,12( 1 2,49¢ — — — — — 2,50(C
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation, net of revers, — — (119 — 63E — — — 51€
Deferred stock compensati — — 734 — (7349) — — — —
Tax benefit associated with sto
options — — 634 — — — — — 634
Repayment of notes receivable
from stockholder: — — — — — 85€ — — 85€
Balance at June 30, 20 23,835,87 24 78,76: — (1,189 (20 10C 8,58t 86,26
Components of comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — — 12,99: 12,99:
Net unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
investments, net of te — — — — — — (260) — (260
Total comprehensive
income 12,73:
Issuance of common stock from
option exercises and stock
purchase pla 1,151,52: 1 5,36¢ — — — — — 5,37(
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation, net of revers, — — (33 — 55C — — — 517
Tax benefit associated with stock
options — — 4,23 — — — — — 4,23
Repayment of notes receivable
from stockholder: — — — — — 20 — — 20
Balance at June 30, 20 24,987,39 25 88,33« — (634) — (16C) 21,57t 109,14(
Components of comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — — — — — 37,98t 37,98¢
Net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
investments, net of te — — — — — — 31 — 31
Total comprehensive
income 38,01¢
Issuance of common stock fron
option exercises and stock
purchase pla 1,432,04! 1 8,40¢ — — — — — 8,40¢
Purchase of treasury sto — — — (21,180 — — — — (21,180)
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation, net of revers, — — 3 331 — — — 32¢
Tax benefit associated with stock
options — — 9,951 — — — — — 9,951
Balance at June 30, 20 26,419,44 $ 26 $106,68¢ $(21,180 $ (309 $ — % (12€) $59,56( $  144,66(




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99: $ 37,98
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt 1,45¢ 1,013 1,061
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired intapigi asset 40 — —
Amortization of deferred stock compensat 51€ 517 32¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: — — 487
Tax benefit from stock optior 634 4,23 9,951
Deferred taxe (182 (519) 1,831
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl 61 (8,699 (12,919
Inventories (567) (97) (1,206
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (28€) (62) (299)
Other asset 282 (147) (12,83¢)
Accounts payabl 87¢ 2,32 3,17(
Accrued compensatic 647 1,78¢ 1,044
Income taxes payab (98%) 2,351 10,84¢
Other accrued liabilitie 1,36¢ (1,025 2,05t
Other liabilities 75 96 36
Net cash provided by operating activit 11,66¢ 14,78: 42 .54
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of shterm investment (25,05¢) (21,199 (221,38)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of «term investment 9,19¢ 19,71¢ 101,53
Purchases of property and equipm (1,306 (908) (13,847
Investment in Foveon, In — — (4,000
(Increase) decrease in restricted ¢ (240 24C —
Cash paid in connection with the acquisition of N$&thnology Limitec (960) — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (18,369 (2,149 (137,699
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior suhated note: — — 125,00(
Debt issuance cos — — (4,309
Purchase of treasury sto — — (21,180)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeotisptions and stock purchase
plan 2,50( 5,37( 8,40¢
Payments on capital leases and equipment finarotitigations (445) (237) (28)
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholi 85€ 20 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 2,911 5,15¢ 107,89:
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: (3,799 17,79: 12,74:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 45,49 41,69° 59,48¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $ 41,69; $ 59,48¢ $ 72,23
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(in thousands)

Years ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for intere: $ 77 $ 7 $  45€
Cash paid for taxe 4,78: 1,85¢ 10,59¢
Retirement of equipment and related accumulatedegdegiion for property and

equipment no longer in servi 65€ 50¢€ 17C
Reversal of deferred stock compensa (13€) (33 3

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Presentation

We are a leading worldwide developer and sappfF custom-designed user interface solutionsehable people to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and othertedaic devices. Founded in March 19
we began shipping our TouchPad product in 1995¢chvinicorporates our core capacitive technology.ajpdur core capacitive technology
incorporated into every product we sell, which @esigned into products offered by most of the magebook computer and hard-disk drive
music player original equipment manufactures (OEM)ughout the world.

The consolidated financial statements inclodefinancial statements and those of our whollyed subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled upon consolidation.

Our fiscal year ends on the last SaturdayireJFor ease of presentation, the accompanyiagdial statements have been shown as
ending on June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005 and eatiosd years consisted of 52 weeks.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications have been madeity pear balances in order to conform to the curyear presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestegnts in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoainting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezbata of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenseasyelated disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate atingates, including those related to revenue reitiognallowance for doubtful accounts, ¢
of revenue, inventories, product warranty, providior income taxes, income taxes payable, intapgiskets, and contingencies. We base our
estimates on historical experience, applicable Jand various other assumptions that we believ®teeasonable under the circumstance:
results of which form the basis for making judgnsesibout the carrying value of assets and liakslitiet are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these easti® under different assumptions or conditions.

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid istreents with original maturities of three monthdess. Short-term investments consist of
marketable securities and are classified as seutdvailable for sale” under Statement of Finahgiccounting Standards (FAS) No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Eg$ecurities”.Such securities are reported at fair value, wittealized gains and loss
net of taxes, excluded from earnings and shownraggg as a component of accumulated other comps#eincome within stockholders’
equity. A decline in the market value of a secubigyow cost that is deemed other than temporaciiasged to earnings, resulting in the
establishment of a new cost basis for the secunitgrest earned on marketable securities is iralud interest income. Realized gains and
losses on the sale of marketable securities asgrdited using the specific identification method.
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The following is a summary of investments iarketable securities and cash equivalents (in Huls):

June 30, 200
Gross Gross Estimatec
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money marke $ 21,817 $ — $ $ 21,817
Municipal securitie: 62,68¢ — 16C 62,524
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 84,50: $ — $ 16C $ 84,341
June 30, 200
Gross Gross Estimatec
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money marke $ 67,47: $ — $ — $ 67,47:
Auction rate preferre 47,32 — — 47,32
U.S. agencie 8,00( — — 8,00(
Asset backed securitit 5,40( — — 5,40(
Municipal securitie: 96,09: — 12¢ 95,96+
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 224,28 $ — $ 12¢ $ 224,16(

The following is a summary of weighted averagerest rates, amortized costs, and estimateddhies of debt securities by contractual

maturity (in thousands):

June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Weighted Weighted

Average Estimatec Average Estimatec

Interest Amortized Fair Interest Amortized Fair

Rate Cost Value Rate Cost Value
Less than one ye: 1.2% $ 68,45 $ 68,44 2.6% $ 199,51! $ 199,42:
Due in 1- 2 years 1.4% 16,04¢ 15,89 3.C% 24,77¢ 24,73¢
Total $ 84,50: $ 84,34 $ 224,28 $ 224,16(

Fair Values of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of our cash equivalents, skerh investments, accounts receivable, accournyalpa, and accrued liabilities approximate
their carrying values due to the short-term natir#nose instruments. The fair value of the notgapée to related party also approximates its
carrying value as the associated interest rat&oépproximates the interest rate we would expebetoharged on a loan under similar
circumstances with similar terms. The fair value@of convertible senior subordinated notes is baseguoted market prices as of the end of
our fiscal year.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjeeto concentrations of credit risk consist priitgasf cash equivalents, short-term
investments, and trade accounts receivable. Oestment policy, which is predicated on
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capital preservation and liquidity, limits investmeto U.S. government treasuries and agency istueble securities, and municipal issued
securities with a minimum rating of A1 (Moody’s) Bl (Standard and Poor’s) or equivalent. We selpooducts primarily to contract
manufacturers that provide manufacturing servioesotebook computer OEMs. Credit is extended basesh evaluation of a customer’s
financial condition, and we generally do not requiollateral. To date, credit losses have beerimithr expectations, and we believe that an
adequate allowance for doubtful accounts has bemnded. At June 30, 2004 and 2005, the followingtomers accounted for more than
10% of our accounts receivable balance:

2004 2005
Customer A 31% 41%
Customer E 16% 7%
Customer C 10% 4%
Customer C 3% 12%

Other Concentrations

Our products include certain components thacarrently single sourced. We believe other vesi@uld be able to provide similar
components; however, the qualification of such wesdnay require start-up time. In order to mitigag adverse impacts from a disruption
of supply, we attempt to maintain an adequate sugiptritical single-sourced components.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales wheretis persuasive evidence that an arrangemesis edelivery has occurred and title has
transferred, the price is fixed and determinalel, eollectibility is reasonably assured. We acdoresstimated sales returns and other
allowances, based on historical experience, diriewe recognize revenue. We record contract nexvéor research and development as the
services are provided under the terms of the contvéie recognize non-refundable contract fees tuckvno further performance obligations
exist and for which there is no continuing invohamby us on the earlier of when the paymentsegeived or when collection is assured.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accountsestimated losses resulting from the inabilitco$tomers to meet their financial
obligations. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate dilectibility of accounts receivable based on a boration of factors. In circumstances in
which we are aware of a specific customer’s potimability to meet its financial obligation, weaord a specific reserve of the bad debt
against amounts due. In addition, we make judgmamdsestimates on the collectibility of accountseieable based on our historical bad ¢
experience, customers’ creditworthiness, curreahemic trends, recent changes in customers’ paytmemis, and deterioration in the
customers’ operating results or financial positibrtircumstances change adversely, additionaldsd allowances may be required.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of casdt{fn, first-out method) or market (estimated reslizable value) and at June 30, 2004 and
2005, consisted of the following (in thousands):

2004 2005
Raw materials $ 6,04 $ 7,61¢
Finished good 481 11z
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Periodically, we purchase inventory from oantract manufacturers when a customer’s delivengduale is delayed or a customer’s order
is cancelled. In those circumstances, we consithetiver a write-down is required to reduce the @agryalue of the inventory purchased to
its net realizable value.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at costlsasmulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieei is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the asget estimated useful life of three years appliesur computer equipment and software;
estimated useful lives ranging from one to fivergespplies to our manufacturing equipment; an egtuohuseful life of three years applies to
our furniture and fixtures; and an estimated uskfeilof 35 years applies to our building. Depréicia expense includes the amortization of
assets recorded under capital leases. Leasehotdviements and assets recorded under capital laes@snortized over the shorter of the
lease term or the useful life of the asset. Dutiregyears ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 200%tiredrfully depreciated equipment and
furniture at an original cost of $656,000, $506,0@@d $170,000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio

Our functional and reporting currency is th&ollar. Our monetary assets and liabilitiesdestominated in the functional currency are
translated into U.S. dollar equivalents at the oditexchange in effect on the balance sheet daie-onetary balance sheet accounts are
measured and recorded at the historical rate aceét the date of translation. Revenue and expaarsetranslated at the weighted average
exchange rate in the month that the transactionroed. Remeasurement of monetary assets andtiebilhat are not denominated in the
functional currency are included currently in opierg results. Translation gains (losses) includedperating results for the years ended
June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005, totaled ($14,0882,000), and $77,000, respectively. To date, we m@t undertaken hedging transactions
related to foreign currency exposure.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets with fimite lives are not amortized, instead, we revibe carrying value of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives at leastwaally for impairment as of the fiscal year endalpale sheet date. However, we may review the
carrying value more frequently when events or cleang circumstances indicate that the carryingevahay be impaired. In connection with
our latest annual impairment review, we determitiede was no impairment of the carrying value ajdyeill or other intangible assets.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement FAS 144, “Accmgnfor the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived&ts”, we evaluate long-lived assets,
such as property and equipment and intangible @isabject to amortization for impairment whenewargs or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset mayraecoverable. Recoverability of assets to lhe dwed used is measured by a comparisc
the carrying amount of an asset to estimated uadiged future cash flows expected to be generateldebasset. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted futuheflcags, an impairment charge is recognized byatm®unt by which the carrying amount
the asset exceeds the fair value of the assettsAssbe disposed of would be separately preséntée consolidated balance sheet and
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or ¥aiue less costs to sell, and would no longeddy@eciated. The assets and liabilities of a
disposed group classified as held for sale wouldresented separately in the appropriate assdiadnility sections of the consolidated
balance sheet.

Investment in Foveon, In

We have an investment that consists of an ostiigginterest in the form of convertible preferstdck in a privately held development-
stage company. As our initial voting interest extask20%, we accounted for the investment undeedlaéy method in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18, “Theuity Method of Accounting for Investments in Comn®tock” (APB 18), and the
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) topic D-68 asddsaNo. 98-13 “Accounting by an Equity Method Ineedor Investee Losses When the
Investor Has Loans to and Investments in Other iB&s10f the Investee” and Issue No. 99-10 “Petaga Used
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to Determine the Amount of Equity Method Losses’e ¥onsidered our ownership of preferred stock alvdrces made to the affiliated
company in determining the amount of equity logedse recognized (see Note 2). The balance ofru@isiment in this company was redu
to zero in fiscal 2000, pursuant to equity methocbainting. During fiscal 2005, our investee issadditional preferred stock and we made
incremental investment in the amount of $4.0 millids a result of the preferred stock issuanceyoting interest in the investee was
reduced to approximately 15%. In addition, two of board members also serve on the board of thesiae. Our incremental investment will
be accounted for under the cost method in accoedaith APB 18 and EITF Issues No. 02-14 “Whethetrarestor Should Apply the Equity
Method of Accounting to Investments Other than CamrBtock” and No. 03-1 “The Meaning of Other-Thaporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments” because thesgtmnent is not “in-substance common stock” and vélkreviewed periodically for
impairment.

Segment Information

We have adopted FAS 131, “Disclosure Aboutnsags of an Enterprise and Related Information”.dfferate in one segment: the
development, marketing, and sale of intuitive ustarface solutions for electronic devices and pudsl.

Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted by FAS 123, “Accounting for SteBRsed Compensation”, (FAS 123), we apply APB QpirlNo. 25, Accounting for Stocl
Issued to Employees”, (APB 25), and related in&ifons in accounting for our stock option pland,accordingly, we do not recognize
compensation expense for stock option grants td@raps with an exercise price equal to the fairkevalue of the shares at the date of
grant. We provide additional pro forma disclosuassequired under FAS 123.

Options granted to consultants and other mopl@yees are accounted for at fair value determimedsing the Black-Scholes method in
accordance with EITF Issue No. 96-18, “AccountiagEquity Instruments That Are Issued to Other TRarployees for Acquiring, or In
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services”. Thepdons are subject to periodic revaluation oheirtvesting term, if any. The
assumptions used to value stock-based awards suktants and non-employees are similar to those fsseemployees.

We follow APB 25, and related interpretatiam@ccounting for stock options. Had compensatiqrease for stock options been
determined based on the fair value of the optiatese of grant consistent with the provisions ofSFE23, net income and earnings per share
would have been reduced to the pro forma amoudisated below (in thousands, except per share atspun

Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005

Net income— as reportel $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99. $ 37,98t

Add: Stocl-based compensation expense included in reportedemhe, net of ta 33C 32C 213

Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determiraat fair value based

method for all awards, net of ti (2,790 (4,045 (6,506

Net income— pro forma $ 5,25¢ $ 9,267 $ 31,69.
Net income per sha— Basic:

As reportec $ 0.3t $ 052 $  1.4¢

Pro forma $ 0.27 $ 0.3 $ 1.2t
Net income per sha— Diluted:

As reportec $ 031 $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C

Pro forma $ 0.21 $ 03¢ $ 10¢

In December 2004, the Financial Accountingh8tads Board finalized FAS 123R, “Share-Based Payh{EAS 123R), which will
require us to expense stock options based on dedetfair value in our
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financial statements starting with our first quadgfiscal 2006. The effect of expensing stockiams in our results of operations using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model is presentethmpreceding pro forma table; however, the amoprgsented are not necessarily
indicative of future amounts that will be chargedricome in connection with our adoption of FAS R22doption of FAS 123R is not
expected to affect cash flow, but will adverselfeef net income and net income per share.

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model wasaleped for use in estimating the fair value of édaptions having no vesting restrictions
and being fully transferable and requires the irgfutighly subjective assumptions, including expedife and expected volatility. These
factors can materially impact the estimated graé dair value of employee stock options.

The fair value of each award granted was egéthat the date of grant using the Black-Schghisopricing model, assuming no expec
dividends and the following weighted average asgiong:

Stock Option Plai Employee Stock Purchase P
Years ended June 3 Years ended June 3
2003 2004 2005 2003 2004 2005
Expected volatility 82.2% 74.5% 68.4% 69.£% 65.(% 58.%
Expected life of options in yea 5 5 5 0.4 0.5 11
Risk-free interest rat 2.6% 3.C% 3.5% 1.4% 1.C% 2.€%
Fair value per shal $ 4.24 $ 7.97 $ 13.71 $ 2.7: $ 2.57 $ 10.31

Product Warrantie:

We generally warrant our products for a pendd2 months or more from the date of sale anidhes¢ probable product warranty costs at
the time we recognize revenue. Factors that affectvarranty liability include historical and arifiated rates of warranty claims, materials
usage, rework, and delivery costs. Warranty costsrred have not been material in recent years.édew we assess the adequacy of our
warranty obligations periodically and adjust theraed warranty liability on the basis of our estieza

Changes in our warranty liability (includedather accrued liabilities) for the years endedeJ8®, 2004 and 2005 are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 2005
Beginning accrued warran $ 1,002 $ 704
Provision for product warranti 247 50¢&
Cost of warranty claims and settleme (540 (840
Ending accrued warran $ 704 $ 36¢

Advertising Expens

All advertising costs are expensed as incudgdertising costs were not material to any of pleeiods presented.

F-14




Table of Contents

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income includes all changesoickbolders’ equity during a period, except thassuiting from investments by owners and
distributions to owners. Other comprehensive incdlogs) comprises unrealized gains and losses aifable-for-sale securities.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for by the asskliaility method. Deferred tax assets and lidieisi are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawgiuls. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aresmesl using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in income in the period that includesdghactment date. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferregsatsato the amounts expected to be realized. Waidwy the operating earnings of our
foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely investedside the United States. Accordingly, no providias been made for the United States
federal, state, or foreign taxes that may resafnffuture remittances of undistributed earningewfforeign subsidiaries.

Research and Developme

Costs to develop our products, which inclutedosts incurred to design interface solutiongfigtomers prior to the customers
incorporating those solutions into their produetg expensed as incurred in accordance with FA&2dunting for Research and
Development Costs,” which establishes accountirraporting standards for research and developoosts.

We account for software development costzaoalance with FAS 86, “Accounting for the CostCaimputer Software to be Sold,
Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” which requirestedipation of certain software development costseotechnological feasibility for the
software component is established, and researcderalopment activities for the hardware compoeatcompleted. Based on our
development process, the time period between tiableshment of technological feasibility and comjae of the hardware component and
release of the product is short and capitalizadfoimternal development costs has not been materiddte.

Net Income Per Sha

Basic and diluted net income per share amanetpresented in conformity with the FAS 128, titlags Per Share,” (FAS 128) for all
periods presented. In accordance with FAS 128chbeetiincome per share amounts for each perioégpred have been computed using the
weighted average number of shares of common statstamding. Diluted net income per share amoumtedoh period presented have been
computed (1) using the weighted average numbeotainially dilutive shares issuable in connectidthwvgtock options under the treasury
stock method, and (2) using the weighted averagabeu of shares issuable in connection with conblertiebt under the idonverted metho
when dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2004, the Emerging Issues Task F&EE) issued EITF No. 03-01 “The Meaning of Othdrafh-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments” (EITF 03-01)TE 03-01 provides guidance with respect to deteingi the meaning of other-than-
temporary impairment and its application to delat aquity securities within the scope of Stateméiftimancial Accounting Standards
No. 115,“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg$ecurities”, including investments accounteddoder the cost method and
new disclosure requirements for investments tratlaemed to be temporarily impaired. We understaadrinancial Accounting Standards
Board is currently reconsidering disclosure, meam@nt, and recognition of other-than-temporary inmpants of debt and equity securities
under EITF 03-01. Until new guidance is issued,diselosure requirements of EITF 03-01 were effecfor our fiscal 2005 annual
consolidated financial statements.
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In November 2004, the Financial Accountingn8rds Board issued Statement of Financial Accogritandards No. 151, “Inventory
Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4” (EBE). FAS 151 clarifies that abnormal inventoryteaaich as costs of idle facilities,
excess freight and handling costs, and wasted ratéspoilage) are required to be recognized agouperiod costs. The provisions of FAS
151 are effective for our fiscal 2006. The adoptidirAS 151 will not have a material impact on &nancial position, results of operations,
or cash flows.

In December 2004, the Financial Accountingh8sads Board finalized Statement of Financial Actimg Standards No. 123R, “Share-
Based Payment” (FAS 123R), amending FAS No. 1Z8¢t¥e beginning our first quarter of fiscal 20B&S 123R will require us to
expense stock options based on grant date faievalaur financial statements. Further, the adoptibFAS 123R will require additional
accounting related to the income tax effects amtitiathal disclosure regarding the cash flow effeetsulting from share-based payment
arrangements. The effect of expensing stock optonsur results of operations using a Black-Schofg®npricing model is presented in «
financial statements in Note 1 — Basis of Pres@mattock-Based Compensation. We will adopt FASRLA8ing the modified prospective
method and the adoption thereof will have no eftecour cash flows, but is expected to have a nadtilverse impact on our results of
operations. We anticipate the pre-tax charge fd BR3R to be in the range of $13.5 million to $1#ibion for fiscal 2006, however, the
actual pre-tax charge could significantly diffesrft our estimate if facts and assumptions usedttma& fair value during fiscal 2006
significantly differ from those used in modelingrastimate.

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting StandaBiard issued Statement of Financial Accountirm&airds No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections” (FAS 154). FAS Eplaces Accounting Principals Board Opinion No(&BB 20) and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 3 “Reporting duaating Changes in Interim Financial Statementst] applies to all voluntary changes
in accounting principle, and changes the requiresiem accounting for and reporting of a changadoounting principle. APB 20 previously
required that most voluntary changes in accourginciple be recognized by including in net incoaig¢he period of change a cumulative
effect of changing to the new accounting principteereas FAS 154 requires retrospective applicdtiqorior periods’ financial statements of
a voluntary change in accounting principle, uniegsimpracticable. FAS 154 enhances the consisten financial information between
periods. FAS 154 will be effective beginning thesfiquarter of our fiscal 2007. We do not expeetdtoption of FAS 154 will have a
material impact on our financial position, resafoperations, or cash flows.

2. Ownership Interest in Foveon, Inc. and Note Payde to Related Party

During the year ended June 30, 1998, we ahiate agreements with National Semiconductor Caafion (National), then a related pai
with respect to the formation of a development-stagmpany, Foveonics, Inc. (how known as Fovean),lawhich was formed to develop
and produce digital imaging products. We contridutchnology for which we had no accounting bamisaf30% interest in Foveon in the
form of voting convertible preferred stock. Undeee agreements, we had the right to acquire additisimares of convertible preferred stoc
a specified price in exchange for a limited-recedo@n from National. National loaned us $1.5 millunder a limited-recourse note, which
we utilized to purchase additional preferred shafdsoveon, which increased our ownership inteirefioveon to 43%. The note matures in
August 2007 and bears interest at 6.0% per anriuime hote and related accrued interest are naideplationals sole remedy under the Ic
is to require us to return to National a portiorFoiveon shares purchased with the proceeds ob#mednd held by us.

During the year ended June 30, 1998, we recbodrr share of losses incurred by Foveon undezdhity accounting method on the basis
of our proportionate ownership of voting convesilpireferred stock and reduced the carrying valubisfequity investment to zero as our
share of losses incurred by Foveon exceeded thgm@awvalue of the investment. No equity lossesemecorded during the year ended
June 30, 1999, as we did not have any carryingevassociated with the investment.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, we ag¢hticFoveon a total of $2.7 million in return fmmvertible promissory notes. The notes
were convertible into shares of Foveon preferredksin accordance with the defined terms, hadra t#rten years, and bore interest at rates
ranging from 6.5% to 6.85%, payable at maturityriBgyithe year ended June 30, 2000, we recordedlare of losses incurred by Foveon on
the basis
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of our proportionate share of funding provided tw&on by us and National and accordingly recordiitianal equity losses limited to the
then maximum carrying value of our total investmevitich was $2.7 million, including the ownershipconvertible debt securities issued by
Foveon. Accordingly, the carrying value of our ietraent in Foveon was reduced to zero during the gre@ed June 30, 2000 as our share of
losses incurred by Foveon exceeded the carryingeva the investment.

In August 2000, the convertible promissoryesotve held and related accrued interest were atitatia converted into 443,965 shares of
Foveon preferred stock in connection with an edfiiitgncing completed by Foveon.

In connection with the issuance of the conlikrfpromissory notes, we also received warrangutchase 106,718 shares of Foveon
Series B preferred stock and warrants to purcha®8 shares of Foveon Series C preferred stoekeatise prices of $5.88 and $6.76 per
share, respectively. These warrants expired unesegfcuring the year ended June 30, 2005.

On May 31, 2005, we participated in an eqfiitgncing, receiving 3,943,217 shares of FoveoieSdf preferred for a cash investment of
$4.0 million. The Series E preferred shares areexdible into common shares on a one-for-one tetsgy time at our option, upon a firm
underwritten public offering of Foveon common stadkot less than $20 million and at a price parstof not less than three times the
original issue price, or upon the written agreenaérthe holders of at least 60% of the outstangireferred shares voting as a single class.
The Series E preferred shares are also entitléguiolation preference up to two times the origiisalue price over the non-Series E preferred
and common shares. As of June 30, 2005, our vatbegest in Foveon was approximately 15% and twousfboard members also serve on
the board of the investee. We are not obligatqutdwide additional funding to Foveon.

The Series E preferred investment in Fovedhbsiaccounted for under the cost method in acmed with APB Opinion No. 18 and El
Issues No. 02-14 and No. 03-1 because the invesimant “in-substance common stock” and will beiegved periodically for impairment.
As of June 30, 2005, the carrying value of our gtreent in Foveon was $4.0 million and is includedther assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

3. Acquisition of NSM Technology Limited

In June 2003, we completed the acquisitioN®M Technology Limited (NSM), a Hong Kong compahgattwas a wholly owned
subsidiary of NSM Holdings Limited (NSM Holding®ySM was a developer, manufacturer, and suppligridless telecommunication
products and services. We acquired all of the antshg shares of NSM in exchange for $960,000 sh @ad a contingent payment of
$240,000 that we made into an escrow account. ®@ Gwned approximately 3.86% of the outstandingeshaf NSM Holdings.

Goodwiill $ 1,16(
Net tangible liabilities assume (200
Total consideratiol $ 96C

We allocated the total purchase price exclydie escrow payment based on available informatitinrespect to the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed as follows (irugands):

Under the stock purchase agreement, we wereregl to pay up to an additional $240,000 in dcasNSM Holdings contingent upon the
realization of certain assets acquired within sonths from the date of acquisition. In fiscal 2084, paid $34,000 under this contingent
purchase price term.

The results of operations for NSM were notariat in relation to our results of operations &ory of the periods presented herein and
accordingly, no pro forma information is presented.

4. Net Income Per Share

The following table presents the computatibbasic and diluted net income per share (in thodsaexcept per share amounts):
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Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005

Numerator:

Basic net incom $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99: $ 37,98¢

Interest expense and amortization of debt issueosts on convertible notes, net

tax — — 602

Diluted net income $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99: $ 38,581
Denominator

Shares, basi 23,47: 24,41¢ 25,73¢

Effect of dilutive stock option 1,65¢ 2,69( 2,66¢

Effect of convertible note — — 1,35¢

Shares, dilute 25,13: 27,10¢ 29,76!
Net income per shar

Basic $ 032 $ 0.5 $ 1.4¢

Diluted $ 031 $ 0.4¢ $ 1.3C

Diluted net income per share does not incthdeeffect of the following potential antidilutiv®mmon shares (in thousands):

2003 2004 2005
Stock options outstandir 1,18: 22¢€ 25¢

The weighted-average price of stock optiordusled from the computation of diluted net inconee ghares was $11.10, $15.98, and
$28.88 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 20042@0f, respectively.

5. Property and Equipment
As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, property andpegent consisted of the following (in thousands):

Life 2004 2005

Land $ — $ 2,50(
Building and improvement 35 years — 6,00:
Equipment & tooling 1 year to 5 year 5,44: 7,42¢
Furniture 3 years 501 503
Construction in progres — 3,18¢

5,94« 19,62
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (4,11%) (5,006
Property and equipment, r $  1,82¢ $14,61
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6. Other Assets
As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, other assetgted of the following (in thousands):

Note 2004 2005
Non-current deferred ta 11 $ 87t $ 28C
Investment in Foveon, Ir 2 — 4,00(
Non-current prepaid ta 11 — 12,57¢
Debt issuance costs, r 8 — 3,817
Deposits and other lo-term asset 24C 49¢
Other Asset: $ 1,11¢ $ 2117¢

7. Leases and Other Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

Prior to relocating in July 2005 to our cutrprincipal domestic facility, which we purchasedJanuary 2005, we leased our previous
domestic facility under an operating lease thafrexpon May 31, 2005, which converted to a montrnth rental arrangement through
July 2005. We lease our UK facility under an operptease that expires in fiscal 2007, our Hong ¢éacility under an operating lease that
expires in fiscal 2008, and our other facilities e&nted under operating leases that expire ialf&806. Total rent expense, recognized on a
straight-line basis, was approximately $975,0000%4,000, and $1,176,000 for the years ended Jun20®3, 2004, and 2005, respectively.

The aggregate future minimum rental commitraestof June 30, 2005 for noncancelable operategek withnitial or remaining terms i
excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

Operating
Lease
Fiscal Yeal Paymentt
2006 $ 577
2007 51z
2008 307
Total minimum operating lease payme $ 1,39¢

Contingencies

We may receive notices from third parties tiaim our products infringe their rights. From &no time, we receive notice from third
parties of the intellectual property rights sucktiga have obtained. We cannot be certain thatemimologies and products do not and will
not infringe issued patents or other proprietagits of third parties. Any infringement claims, kvgr without merit, could result in significe
litigation costs and diversion of resources, inolgdhe payment of damages, which could have amahtelverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Intellectual Property Settleme

During the year ended June 30, 2005, we ahiate a cross license agreement with a compefitioe. cross licenses in the agreement are
worldwide, non-exclusive, non-transferable, andaftyyfree. The cross license agreement settleaiodritellectual property claims of the
parties and contains mutual releases of the ictelié property claims of the parties. In connectioth the cross license agreement, which
does not provide for any future service obligationsommitments from us, we received a one-timergay of $3.8 million
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included as other operating expense (income) imtcempanying consolidated statement of incoméhfoyear ended June 30, 2005.

Indemnifications

In connection with certain third-party agreentsenve have executed in the past, we are obligatadlemnify the third party in connection
with any technology infringement by us. We have @stered into indemnification agreements withafticers and directors. Maximum
potential future payments cannot be estimated lsectuese agreements do not have a maximum stabédyli However, historical costs
related to these indemnification provisions haveleen significant. We have not recorded any ligbih our consolidated financial
statements for such indemnification.

Line of Credit

In August 2001, we entered into a $4.2 milliemolving line of credit with a bank, subsequertigreased to $15.0 million on
November 30, 2004. The revolving line of creditiesp on November 27, 2005, unless extended, amgsamn interest rate equal to-
bank’s prime lending rate, which was 6.0% at JUWeB05. Borrowings under this line of credit ambjsct to certain financial and non-
financial covenants and are limited to 75% of dyadg accounts receivable as defined in the agreémvéh the bank. This line of credit
agreement places restrictions on the payment oflangends. As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, we hadowowed any amounts under this
facility.

8. Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

On December 7, 2004 and December 17, 2004ssued an aggregate of $125 million of 0.75% CatilerSenior Subordinated Notes
maturing December 1, 2024 (the “Notes”) in a pevatfering pursuant to Rule 144A under the Seagifict of 1933, as amended. In
connection with issuing the Notes, we incurred dehiance costs of $4.3 million, consisting prityaof the initial purchasers’ discount and
costs related to legal, accounting, and printinigictv will be amortized over five years. We expectse the net proceeds for working capital
and general corporate purposes and potentiallfufare acquisitions.

The Notes bear interest at a rate of 0.75%apeum payable on December 1 and June 1 of eachbgganning June 1, 2005. However,
will pay additional contingent interest on the Noikthe average trading price of the Notes isratlmve 120% of the principal amount of the
Notes for a specified period beginning with the-month period commencing December 1, 2009. The ataficontingent interest payable
on the Notes with respect to a six-month periodwfich contingent interest applies, will equal®%6 per annum of the average trading
price of the Notes for a specified five trading gegyiod preceding such six-month period. We are aldigated to file and maintain a shelf
registration statement with the Securities and Brgle Commission covering resales by the holdetiseoNotes and the common stock
issuable upon conversion of the Notes. In the eokatregistration default, we will be obligatedpay additional interest of up to 0.5% per
annum until such registration default is cured.JOne 1, 2005, our Registration Statement for teesarities was declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Notes are convertible into shares of aanmon stock, initially at a conversion rate of PA.8 shares per $1,000 principal amount of
Notes, or a total of 2,473,975 shares of commocksiohich is equivalent to an initial conversiomcerof approximately $50.53 per share
common stock (subject to adjustment in certain &jefihe denominator of the diluted net incomegterre calculation includes the weighted
average effect of the 2,473,975 shares of commawk $$suable upon conversion of the Notes. Thraugbhember 30, 2009, upon the
occurrence of a fundamental change as defineceimttenture governing the Notes, we could potdptia obligated to issue up to 27.7085
shares per $1,000 of principal amount of Notes, mtal of 3,463,562 shares of common stock, whigguivalent to a conversion price of
$36.09 per share of common stock. The addition8)38 shares, contingently issuable upon a fundtahelnange, are not included in the
calculation of diluted net income per share.

The Notes may be converted (1) if, during ealendar quarter commencing after December 31,,28@4ast reported sale price of our
common stock for at least 20 trading days in thiéopeof 30 consecutive trading days ending on #s¢ trading day of the preceding calendar
quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of thdiege conversion price on such last trading d2ypn or after January 1, 2020; (3) if we
have called the
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Notes for redemption; or (4) during prescribed pasi upon the occurrence of specified corporateséretions or fundamental changes. O
after December 1, 2009, we may redeem for caghr allportion of the notes at a redemption pric&Qff% of the principal amount of the
notes plus accrued and unpaid interest (includamdicgent interest and additional interest, if atNdteholders have the right to require us to
repurchase all or a portion of their notes for caisibecember 1, 2009, December 1, 2014, and DegelnB819 at a price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the notes to be purchasesi gccrued and unpaid interest (including contmdserest and additional interest, if ar
Upon conversion of the Notes, in lieu of deliverc@mmon stock, we may, at our discretion, delivassthcor a combination of cash and
common stock. As of June 30, 2005, none of the itiong for conversion of the Notes were satisfied.

The Notes are unsecured senior subordinatigghtibns and rank junior in right of payment tb @ our existing and future senior
indebtedness, equal in right of payment with albof existing and future indebtedness or othemgaltilbns that are not, by their terms, either
senior or subordinated to the Notes, includingdrdebt and other general unsecured obligationgithabt constitute senior or subordinated
indebtedness, and senior in right of payment tofadlur future indebtedness that, by its termspisordinated to the Notes. There are no
financial covenants in the Notes.

We recorded interest expense of $1.0 millioritee Notes during the fiscal year, which inclu§d&7,000 of amortization of debt issuance
costs. The fair value of the Notes as of June B052vas approximately $101 million based on quaotedket prices.

9. Stockholders’ Equity

We have a Stockholders’ Rights Plan that nmaelthe effect of deterring, delaying, or prevemtinchange in control that might otherwise
be in the best interests of our stockholders. lega, stock purchase rights issued under the lldaome exercisable when a person or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teoffer or exchange offer of 15% or more of our coom stock is announced or
commenced. After any such event, our other stoddrslmay purchase additional shares of our comnoak at 50% of the then-current
market price. The rights will cause substantialtith to a person or group that attempts to acqisren terms not approved by our board of
directors. The rights should not interfere with angrger or other business combination approvedubyoard of directors since the rights
may be redeemed by us at $0.01 per stock purchiggeat any time before any person or group acguif® or more of our outstanding
common stock. The rights expire in August 2012.

Preferred Stocl

We are authorized, subject to limitations isg by Delaware law, to issue up to a total of @0,800 shares of preferred stock in one or
more series without stockholder approval. Our badidirectors is authorized to establish from timéime the number of shares to be
included in each series and to fix the rights, gmexfices, and privileges of the shares of each whalssued series and any of its
qualifications, limitations, or restrictions. Ouvdrd of directors can also increase or decreaseuimber of shares of a series, but not below
the number of shares of that series then outstgndiithout any further vote or action by the stocklers.

Our board of directors may authorize the iaseaf preferred stock with voting or conversiaghts that could harm the voting power or
other rights of the holders of our common stocke suance of preferred stock, while providingifiéity in connection with possible
acquisitions and other corporate purposes, cooldng other things, have the effect of delayinged&ig, or preventing a change in control
of our company and might harm the market priceusfammmon stock and the voting power and othertsighthe holders of common stock.
As of June 30, 2005, there were no shares of pesfestock outstanding and we have no current gtaissue any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based Compensation

During 1986, 1996, 2000, and 2001, we adogteck option plans (the “Plans”) under which emples, consultants, and directors may be
granted incentive stock options or nonqualifiectktoptions to purchase shares of our common stoektdess than 100% or 85% of the fair
value, respectively, on the date of grant as deterthby the Board of Directors.
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Options issued under the Plans generally2&%t at the end of 12 months from the vesting conuament date and approximately 2%
each month thereafter until fully vested at the ehd8 months from the vesting commencement daiio@s not exercised ten years after the
date of grant are canceled.

The 1986 Stock Option Plan expired by its temith respect to any future option grants effextidovember 1996. At June 30, 2005, all
shares available for issuance were pursuant th386 Stock Option Plan, the 2000 Nonstatutory Spkon Plan, and the 2001 Incentive
Compensation Plan.

In October 2002, we granted 200,000 optiors ¢onsultant that at the time were to vest over years. However, in December 2002, we
hired the consultant as an employee. In accordaitbe=IN 44, Accounting for Certain Transactiongdving Stock Compensation, we
remeasured the intrinsic value of the option goanthe date the consultant became an employeeeandded deferred compensation in the
amount of $734,000 as the aggregate differencedeztthe stock price and the exercise price of $B8these options on the date of
employment status change. We are amortizing theraef compensation balance over the remainingngepgriods of the option.

In August 2002, the Board approved an optegrant offer to several employees who had receipsidn grants under the 2001 Incentive
Compensation Plan at an option share price of lt$42.98 and $18.70. The option prices were sutialig higher than the price of our
stock at the time of the regrant offer. Under #rents of the regrant offer employees were alloweeléat to have their option cancelled and in
consideration thereof a new option would be isfoethe same number of shares as cancelled sixima@mtd one day after the date of
cancellation. On March 3, 2003, new options to @ega total of 106,500 shares were granted purdoahie regrant offer with a new exerc
price of $6.56 per share. The vesting period ahedale for the new options remained the same aget$teng schedule of the cancelled
options.

The following table summarizes option activiity the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005:

Options Weighted
Available Average
for Options Exercise
Grant Outstanding Price
Balance at June 30, 20 364,15! 4,506,25: $ 4.64
Additional shares authorize 2,838,07 —
Options grante: (1,541,50) 1,541,501 $ 6.2t
Options exercise — (491,769 $ 3.0C
Options cancelle 346,79( (346,79() $ 10.17
Balance at June 30, 20 2,007,52; 5,209,19 $ 4.9(C
Additional shares authorize 1,829,111 —
Options grante (1,316,751 1,316,75! $ 12.7¢
Options exercise — (985,68Y) $ 4.3z
Options cancelle 109,57 (109,579 $ 7.2¢
Balance at June 30, 20 2,629,46. 5,430,68: $ 6.87
Additional shares authorize 1,165,05: —
Options grante: (1,327,15) 1,327,15! $ 22.8¢
Options exercise — (1,233,79) $ 5.6¢
Options cancelle 97,767 (97,76) $ 13.0¢
Balance at June 30, 20 2,565,13! 5,426,26! $ 10.9¢
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The following table summarizes stock optiontstanding at June 30, 2005:

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractua Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$1.00- $2.00 437,09¢ 3.7¢ $ 1.3¢ 437,09¢ $ 1.3¢€
$2.50- $2.90 307,29: 3.3¢ $ 2.5¢5 307,29: $ 2.5¢F
$3.00- $3.50 542,74: 5.2¢ $ 3.0¢ 542,74 $ 3.0¢€
$4.34- $5.50 255,59: 6.07 $ 4.4F 175,08t $ 4.5C
$6.00- $6.50 491,34( 6.7¢€ $ 6.07 296,03: $ 6.07
$7.37- $8.50 720,91¢ 7.1¢€ $ 7.9¢ 453,55¢ $ 8.1¢
$9.00- $9.96 743,03¢ 7.33 $ 9.5¢ 323,31 $ 9.4¢
$10.91- $15.80 250,99! 8.4z $13.0¢ 69,08’ $13.2¢
$16.4C- $18.70 1,042,00! 8.1¢€ $17.6( 95,64¢ $16.7¢
$20.3% $24.93 195,00( 9.5¢ $22.62 — —
$30.26 440,25( 9.57 $30.2¢ — —
5,426,26! 7.1¢€ $10.9¢ 2,699,86 $ 5.52

At June 30, 2003, and 2004, 2,035,495 and02924 shares were exercisable at a weighted avpegahare exercise price of $3.16 and
$3.78, respectively.

Deferred Compensatic

Through fiscal 2003, we recorded total def@és®ck compensation of $2.8 million, representhmgaggregate difference between the
exercise prices of options granted to employeestamdeemed fair values for common stock subjetiid¢mptions as of the respective
measurement dates. These amounts are being arddstizzharges to operations, on a straight-linesbasgér the vesting periods of the
individual stock options. During the years endedeJB0, 2003, 2004, and 2005, we recorded $51638L¥,,000, and $328,000, respectively,
of amortization expense related to deferred stochpensation. Also, we recorded reversals of $136,883,000, and $3,000 of deferred
stock compensation and amortization expense foriteted employees during the years ended Juned83, 2004, and 2005, respectively.
Upon the adoption of FAS 123R in the first quadgfiscal 2006, we will no longer amortize defertdck compensation, as FAS 123R will
require us to expense stock options based on dedetfair value.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

As of June 30, 2005, we had reserved sharesmimon stock for future issuance as follows:

Stock options outstandir 5,426,26!
Stock options available for gra 2,565,13!
Employee stock purchase plan sh 706,39:
Convertible senior subordinated no 2,473,97!

Reserved for future issuan 11,171,77

Through November 30, 2009, upon the occurrefeefundamental change as defined in the indergaverning the Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes (Notes), we could potentiallpblégated to issue up to 27.7085 shares per $1g0p€@incipal amount of Notes, or a total
of 3,463,562 shares of common stock or an additi®8@,587 shares rather than the 2,473,975 retldntéhe above table.
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Treasury Stock

In April 2005, our board of directors authexiza stock repurchase program for up to $40 mitiibour common stock on the open market
or in privately negotiated transactions dependipgrumarket conditions and other factors. The nurobshares purchased and the timing of
purchases is based on the level of our cash baageaeral business and market conditions, and fabrs, including alternative investm
opportunities. Common stock repurchased undeptioigram is held as treasury stock and through 30n2005 purchases under this prog
totaled 1,139,000 shares for an aggregate co2loP$nillion or an average cost of $18.60 per share

10. Employee benefit plans
401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plandliitime employees. Under the plan, eligible empley may contribute a maximum of 25%
of their net compensation or the annual limit o ®00. The annual limit for employees who are 5&rg®r older is $18,000. We provide
matching funds of 20% of the employee’s contributig to a maximum of $2,800. We made matching dmrttons of $0, $48,800, and
$183,200 in fiscal 2003, 2004, and 2005, respéegtive

2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We adopted the 2001 Employee Stock PurchaseiPIFebruary 2001. The stock purchase plan beeéfiegtive on January 29, 2002, the
effective date of the registration statement fariaitial public offering. The stock purchase plkaliows employees to designate up to 15% of
their total compensation, subject to legal resbit and limitations, to purchase shares of comsatock at 85% of fair market value. During
the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 20085511,65,833, and 198,251 shares of common stook isgued, respectively, under the
stock purchase plan.

11. Income Taxes

Income before provision for income taxes cstesl of the following (in thousands):

Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005

u.s. $ 11,60: $ 20,34( $ 35,14¢
Foreign 46( 58€ 23,18¢
$ 12,06: $ 20,92¢ $ 58,33:
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The provision for income taxes consists offtil®wing (in thousands):

Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005
Current tax expens
Federal $ 3,481 $ 7,23( $ 12,317
State 871 1,18¢ 1,77¢
Foreign 16¢ 35 4,421
4,52¢ 8,45: 18,51¢
Deferred tax expens
Federal 121 (427) 1,611
State (30% (11£ 554
Foreign — 23 (339
(182) (519 1,831
$ 4,344 $ 7,93« $ 20,34%
The provision for income taxes differs frone fiederal statutory rate as follows (in thousands):
Years ended June 3
2003 2004 2005
Provision at U.S. federal statutory r $ 4,227 $ 7,32¢ $ 20,41¢
State income taxe 36¢ 657 1,871
Change in valuation allowan: 624 (332) (57%)
Amortization of deferred compensati (396 — —
Research and development cre (319 (32¢) (22€)
Foreign tax rate differenti — — (359
Resolution of tax uncertaintit — — (1,219
Other permanent differenc (161 613 42C
$ 4,34 $ 7,93« $ 20,34

During fiscal 2005, we recorded $1.2 millidintax benefit from the release of tax contingencgraals associated with income tax issues
settled during the fiscal year and the expiratibstatutes of limitation. No material tax benefibih the release of tax contingency accruals

was realized in fiscal 2004 or fiscal 2003. Thedartingency accruals released in fiscal 2005 feghlestablished in earlier fiscal years.
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As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, significant congmts of our deferred tax assets are as follawgh@usands):

2004 2005
Deferred tax asset
Investment writedown $ 1,09i $ 1,10
Inventory writedown: 984 74
Warranty reserv 28t 15
Depreciation and amortizatic 33¢ 62¢
Accrued compensatic 44¢ 61€
Accruals not currently deductib 14t 83¢
Credit carryforward: 194 —
Foreign loss carryforwarc 59¢ 28C
4,087 3,55¢
Valuation allowanct (1,680 (1,209
2,401 2,45¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest deductio — (1,87¢)
Other (20) (20
(20 (1,899
Net deferred tax asse $ 2,38i $ 55€
As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, net deferreds$arts consisted of the following balances (inshads):
2004 2005
Current deferred tax asst $ 1,517 $ 1,182
Non-current deferred tax asst 87¢ 28C
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie — (906
Net deferred tax asse $ 2,387 $ 55€

Current deferred tax assets, non-current teefdax assets, and non-current deferred taxiliglsilare included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, other assets, and othélitlesyirespectively, in the accompanying consdéidebalance sheets.

Realization of deferred tax assets dependsuogenerating sufficient U.S. and certain foreigxable income in future years to obtain
benefit from the reversal of deferred tax asseteofdingly, the amount of deferred tax assets cemsed realizable may increase or decrease
when we reevaluate the underlying basis for oumegés of future U.S. and foreign taxable incomg.oAJune 30, 2005, a valuation
allowance of $1.1 million had been establishedetiuce deferred tax assets to levels that we bedieenore likely than not to be realized
through future taxable income. The valuation alloeaincreased/(decreased) by $624,000, ($332,800)($575,000) during the years en
June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005, respectively. Apg, 30, 2005, the remaining valuation allowaet&tes to our investment writedowns.

As of June 30, 2005, we had net operatingdass/forwards of approximately $1.6 million gertedhin a foreign jurisdiction, which can
be utilized to offset future taxable income in foeeign jurisdiction. There is no expiration dabe the foreign net operating loss
carryforwards. Our credit carryforwards from fis@@04 were utilized in fiscal 2005. Included in@tlassets is $12.6 million of non-current
prepaid tax. The non-current prepaid tax is assediaith an intercompany royalty arrangement onlitensing of intangibles in connection
with our international operating structure. The foomrent prepaid tax will be charged to tax expemss the weighted average life of the
licensed intangibles or approximately four years.
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The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (thet"Awas signed into law in October 2004. The Aaiates a temporary incentive for U.S.
corporations to repatriate accumulated income eaabeoad by providing an 85% dividends receivedudtdn for certain dividends from
controlled foreign corporations resulting in an Ep@mate 5.25% federal tax rate on the repatriagathings. To qualify for the deduction, the
earnings must be reinvested in the United Statesupat to a domestic reinvestment plan establiblyezlir chief executive officer and
approved by our board of directors. Certain othierga in the Act must be satisfied as well. Wedantil the end of our next fiscal year to
make a qualifying repatriation of earnings. Accagly, we will evaluate whether we will repatriatgdign earnings under the provisions of
the Jobs Act during fiscal 2006. Our tax rate dussreflect any one-time impact that may resulirfrine repatriation of permanently
reinvested off-shore earnings under the Act.

12. Segment, Customers, and Geographic Information

We operate in one segment: the developmenkatiag, and sale of interactive user interfacaisohs for electronic devices and products.
We generate our revenue from two broad producgoaites: the notebook computer market and informeagiopliances (“iAppliances and
other electronic devices”) market. The notebook potar market accounted for 93%, 84%, and 59% ohetirevenue in the years ended
June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005 respectively.

The following is a summary of net revenue witheographic areas based on our customers’ lotétichousands):

Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005
Taiwan $ 55,17 $ 37,21 $ 23,37(
United State: 4,34z 5,69: 4,007
Korea 4,62¢ 4,307 1,49¢
China 25,97¢ 75,89¢ 157,66
Japar 5,28¢ 3,69¢ 3,294
Singapore 587 34C 13,68(
Other 4,707 6,12¢ 4,62¢

$ 100,70: $ 133,27t $ 208,13

As of June 30, 2004 and 2005, long-lived asaéthin geographic areas consisted of the follga{in thousands):

2004 2005
Taiwan $ 12 $ 4
United Kingdom 15¢ 21C
United State: 1,601 14,33¢
Japar 6 10
Hong Kong 52 52
$ 1,82¢ $ 14,61t

Major customers as a percentage of net revenue

Years ended June 3

2003 2004 2005
Customer A 14% 25% 34%
Customer E 6% 1C0% 6%
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13. Subsequent Events

In April 2005, the board authorized a $40 iwillstock repurchase program, 1,167,100 sharespuechased subsequent to June 30,
2005, at an aggregate cost of $18.8 million, oaeerage cost of $16.12 per share. No further shatkelse repurchased under this program.
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Reserve deducted from as—
Allowance for doubtful account
2003
2004
2005

SCHEDULE II

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ending June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005
(in thousands)

Balance a Additions
beginning charged t
of year expense

$ 20C 10
16C —

13C 44

Adjustments Balance a
to end of
reserve year
(50) 16C
(30) 13C
(9) 18



Exhibit 12.1

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Set forth below is information concerning oatio of earnings to fixed charges on a consolidiai@sis for the periods indicated. This ratio
shows the extent to which our business generatasggbnearnings after the payment of all expensesr ditfan interest to make the required
interest payments on the convertible senior subatdd notes.

For purposes of computing the ratio of earsitwfixed charges, “earnings” consist of incomteincome taxes and fixed charges.
“Fixed charges” consist of interest expense angtrgon of rent expense we believe representintieeest component of such rent expense.

Years ended June 3
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(in thousands, except for ratic

Fixed Charges:

Interest expens $ 18: $ 197 $ 15E $ 134 $ 1,14
Portion of rent expense deemed to represent

interest 23€ 242 32t 35¢ 39z
Total fixed charge $ 41c¢ $ 43¢ $ 48C $ 49z $ 153

Earnings:

Net income $ 8IC $ 9,40( $ 7,71¢ $ 12,99: $ 37,98¢
Income taxe: 18C 5,05¢ 4,34 7,93¢ 20,34,
Fixed charge: 41¢ 43¢ 48C 49z 1,537
Total earnings for computation of ra $ 1,40¢ $ 14,89¢ $ 12,54: $ 21,41¢ $ 59,86¢

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 3.4 33.¢ 26.1 43.F 39.C



SUBSIDIARIES

NAME

STATE OR JURISDICION
OF ORGANIZATION

Exhibit 21

Synaptics International, In
Synaptics (UK) Limitec
Synaptics Hong Kong Limite
Synaptics Holding Gmbl

Synaptics LLC

California
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Switzerlanc

Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Nos. 333-81820, 333-82288-82286, 333-82282, 333-99529
and 333-99531) on Form S-8, Registration StateflenB33-115274 on Form S-4, and Registration StatgiNo. 333-122348 on Form S-3
of Synaptics Incorporated of our reports dated &apter 2, 2005, with respect to the consolidatedrua sheets of Synaptics Incorporated
and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2004 and 2005hanetlated consolidated statements of incomekistdders’ equity and comprehensive
income and cash flows for each of the years irthhee-year period ended June 30, 2005 and theddimancial statement schedule,
management’s assessment of the effectivenesseshaltcontrol over financial reporting as of JuBe 3005, and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30,208hich reports appear in the June 30, 2005 amepalt on Form 10-K of Synaptics
Incorporated.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
September 2, 2005



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Francis F. Lee, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maintgjimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registrant’s internal control over finaieeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiaiuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrars’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 7, 2005

/sl Francis F. Le

Francis F. Lee
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Russell J. Knittel, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maintgjimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesff, the registrant’s internal control over finaeeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiaiuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrars’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 7, 2005

/sl Russell J. Knitte

Russell J. Knittel
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on ForfaKL of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) fbetyear ended June 30, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), Francis F. Lee, President and Chief Executivicerf of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company

/sl Francis F. Le
Francis F. Lee

Chief Executive Officer
September 7, 20C




Exhibit 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on ForfaKL of Synaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) fbetyear ended June 30, 2005 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Russell J. Knitteknior Vice President, Chief Financial

Officer, Chief Administrative Officer, Secretaryj@Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant8®1S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to &
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirems of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Russell J. Knitte
Russell J. Knittel
Chief Financial Officer
September 7, 20C
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